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To Our Shareholders

As reflected in our 2007 first quarter results, American Independence Corp. (NASDAQ:AMIC) is beginning to
reap the benefits of the foundation we have been building since becoming a health insurance holding company in
November 2002. On a non-GAAP basis, the Company’s income from operations excluding amortization expense
and Federal income 1ax charge related to deferred 1axes for the 2007 first quarter increased 143% to $1.7 million
($.20 per share, diluted), as compared to $0.7 million ($.08 per share, diluted) for the comparable 2006 period.
Independence American Insurance Company is now licensed in 46 jurisdictions and has policies approved for
multiple health insurance lines in most of these states. Beginning this year, Independence American is writing small
group major medical, major medical for individuals and families and employer medical stop-loss as an issuing
carrier. While reinsurance of health business from other carriers (including our 48% sharcholder, independence
Holding Company (“IHC™}) remains a significant source of revenue, our strategy for future growth will focus on
being an issuing carrier of various health products. The greatest benefit of these new lines of business is
diversification and balance. Prior to this year, AMIC was almost entirely reliant on one line of business, medical
stop-loss, and both Independence American and our managing general underwriter (MGU) division were negatively
impacted in the last few years by the “soft” medical stop-loss market. While we are pleased that our results in this
line of business are continuing to improve, we believe that our diversification strategy is even more important to
AMIC’s future.

Transition to Medical Insurance Written by Independence American

In 2006, almost all of Independence American’s premiums were derived from reinsurance. While reinsurance
premium will continue to be an important source of revenue, we have positioned the Company to write multiple
lines of fully insured medical in a variety of states. The first step was to get Independence American, which is
domiciled in Delaware and rated B++ (Good) by A.M. Best, broadly licensed. When we acquired Independence
American from [HC less than five years ago, it was licensed in 24 jurisdictions. We have almost doubled that
number already, and we are optimistic that, by the end of this year, we will achizve that goal. Once licensed in a
state, we immediately embark on multiple product filings. We now have emplover medical stop-loss, short-term
medical, small group major medical and major medical for individuals and families approved in the majority of
states, and we continue to make product filings on a regular basis. Of course, to sell these products we need
distribution, and that is perhaps the most exciting development in 2007.

Through an agreement with an established marketing and administration organization, Employers Direct
Heaith (“EDH”), Independence American is writing group health policies for small and large employers. Inde-
pendence American will be the exclusive issuing carrier for business underwritien by this organization through
December 31, 2011, with an option to extend the agreement until December 31, 2016. Since the majority of the
premium from EDH is transitioning to Independence American from EDH’s existing block, premivms from this
producer will continue to be earned in future quarters. This block, which is expected to produce meaningful growth,
has averaged 8% underwriting profit over the past five years.

In addition, Independence American has entered into an agreement with Independent Producers of America, a
national career agent marketing organization, 10 begin marketing health plans to individuals and families utilizing
Independence American as the carrier. independence American will begin to earn premiums from this line of
business in the third quarter of 2007. The program will be administered by Insurers Administrative Corporation, a
wholly owned subsidiary of IHC.




Reinsured Premiums and Medical Stop-Loss

The majority of this premium has come from pro rata quota share reinsurance treaties with Standzrd Security
Life Insurance Company of New York and Madison National Life Insurance Company, inc., which are wholly
owned subsidiaries of IHC. These treaties were entered into in 2002 and will terminate on December 31, 2014,
unless terminated sooner by Independence American. During 2005 and 2006, Standard Security Life ad Madison
National Life ceded approximately 22% of their medical stop-loss business to Independence Americar , making it
their largest reinsurer. Independence American also reinsures (i) 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-term
statutory disability benefit product in New York State (“DBL"), which ali companies with more than on 2 employee
in New York State are required to provide for their employees, and (ii) 10% of IHC’s small group ma jor medical
business and short-term medical products (“STM").

The medica! stop-toss line is not only the most significant source of revenues for Independence Arerican, but
is also critical to the revenues of our MGUs. Due to corrective underwriting actions, the amount of gros s premiums
written by the IHC companies decreased during 2006. Based on currenily available information, busine is incepting
in 2006, of which a material portion will be earned and recorded in 2007, is projected to achieve a net I ss ratio that
is meaningfully lower than that of business incepting in 2003, just as the net loss ratio on business incep:ing in 2005
was meaningfully lower than that of business incepting in 2004.

Financial Highlights
The following is a summary of key performance measures of AMIC:

« Premiums earned increased to $67.8 million for 2006 from $66.1 million for 2005. Premiums relating to
group major medical and STM were $7,685,000 (11.3% of premiums earned) and $4,199,0)0 (6.3% of
premiums earned) for 2006 and 2005, respectively.

« Assets increased to $134.8 million at December 31, 2006 from $129.7 million at year-end 2005. Total
investments increased to $57.2 million in 2006 from $48.5 million in 2005, and annual investment yield
approximated 5.4% in 2006 compared 1o 4.8% in 2005. At December 31, 2006, approximately 94.3% of
your Company’s invested assets we tepresented by investment grade fixed-income securities, ¢1sh and cash
equivalents, resale agreements, and policy loans; less than 1% were held directly in non-inve:tment grade
bonds.

» Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased to $1.5 million (8.17 per share;, diluted) as
compared to $5.5 million ($.64 per share, diluted) for 2005.

« Revenues for 2006 were $81.5 million as compared to $83.1 million in 2005.

» Stockholders’ equity per share increased to $9.82 per share at December 31, 2006 from $9.6+ per share at
December 31, 2005.

« As of December 31, 2006, our federal net operating loss carry forwards (“NOLs”), which aro e from prior
internet operations, were $276 million.

* On a non-GAAP basis, the Company’s income from continuing operations excluding amortiz: tion expense
and Federal income tax charge related to deferred taxes for the three months ended March 31, 20007 increased
143% to $1.7 million ($.20 per share, diluted) for the three months ended March 31, 2007, as compared to
$0.7 million ($.08 per share, diluted) for the three months ended March 31, 2006. Stockholde :s° equity per
share increased to $9.99 at March 31, 2007.



Looking Forward

As we look forward to our next several years, we believe that your Company is very well positioned to improve
upon its 2006 results, as demonstrated by our 2007 first quarter results. In 2006, the results of both Independence
American and our MGUs were negatively impacted by a “soft” medical stop-loss market. Corrective action was
taken and we believe that the improved stop-loss results that we reported in the first quarter of 2007 will continue for
the remainder of the year. We are also moving toward a much more diversified company. In 2007, Independence
American has begun writing a significant amount of fully insured medical. Not only do we receive the carrier
allowance in addition to risk premium, but this business tends to be less volatile and less cyclical than excess
insurance, and provides a healthy balance to our product portfolio.

We could not have produced these results without our dedicated staff, rnanagement team, and Board of
Directors, and without the continuing support of our shareholders.

Very truly yours,

Roy T.K. Thung

Chief Executive Officer and President
Dated: May 18, 2007
www.americanindependencorp.com.




PRODUCT LINES

Medical Stop-Less

» Employer Medical Stop-Loss Insurance products that allow self-insured employers to manage the risk of
excessive health insurance exposures by limiting aggregate and specific losses to a predetermin :d amount.

« Provider Excess Loss/HMO Reinsurance Insurance and reinsurance products for providers, AMOs and
managed care organizations that either desire or are required, by contract or state regulation to pu chase such
coverage to reduce their risk assumption.

Fully Insured Health Products

« Employer-Sponsored Group Major Medical Fully insured major medical coverage designed t¢ work with
health reimbursement accounts (“HRA") and health savings accounts ("HSA").

s Employer-Sponsored Group and Individual Major Medical for Individuals and Fumilies Fully in ;ured major
medical coverage designed to work with health reimbursement accounts (“HRAs”) and he: lth savings
accounts {""HSAs™).

* Short-Term Medical Fully insured major medical coverage with a defined duration, which is nortatly twelve
months or less.

« Dental/Vision Dental indemnity and PPO coverage for small and large employer and affinity groups. Vision
benefits for a specified amount toward eye exams and the purchase of eye glasses and conta:t lenses.

New York Short-Term DBL

» DBL New York State mandated temporary cash payments to replace wages lost as a result of dis: bility dve to
non-occupational injury or illness.

RECONCILIATION OF GAAP INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS TO
NON-GAAP INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Three Month ; Ended

March §1,
2007 2006
(in thousand ; except
per share data)}
Income from continuing Operations. . .. ... . v it iin e $1.114 $393
Amortization of intangible assets related to purchase accounting .. .......... 48 116
Federal income tax charge related to deferred taxes .. ......... .. ... .. ... 362 201
Income from continuing operations excluding amortization and federal income
TAX CHAMEE . . oo ettt e $1,724 $710
Non — GAAP Basic Income Per Common Share:
Income from continuing operations excluding amortization and federal income
X ChATBE . . o\ttt e e $ .20 $.08
Non — GAAP Diluted Income Per Common Share:
Income from continuing operations excluding amortization and federal income
X ChANEE . .. oot e $ .20 $.08

|
|
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Act. Yes O No
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Since November 2002, American Independence Corp. (“AMIC or the “Company”) has been a holding
company engaged in the insurance and reinsurance business through: a) its wholly owned insurance company,
Independence American Insurance Company (“Independence American’™™); b) its managing general underwriter
subsidiaries: IndependenceCare Holdings L.L.C. and its subsidiaries (cotlectively referred to as “Independence-
Care™); Risk Assessment Strategies, Inc. (“RAS™), and Marlton Risk Group LLC (“Marlton™); and ¢} its investment
in Majestic Underwriters LLLC (“Majestic”}. IndependenceCare, RAS and Marlton are collectively referred to as the
“MGU Subsidiaries.” Prior to its current operations, AMIC was an Internet service provider known as SoftNet
Systems, Inc.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements and materials contained in this report, such as statements relating to management’s views
with respect to future events and financial performance, may be considered “forward-looking statements”,, Such
forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual results to
differ materially from historical experience or from future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. For a discussion of risk factors affecting the Company’s business and prospects, see ltem 1A Risk
Fuactors,

Principal Products and Services

Independence American Insurance Company

Independence American, which is domiciled in Delaware, is licensed to write property and/or casualty
insurance in 43 states and the District of Columbia, and has a B++ (Good) rating from A.M. Best Company, Inc.
(“AM. Best"). An AM. Best rating is assigned after an extensive quantitative and qualitative evaluation of a
company’s financial condition and operating performance, and is also based upon factors relevant to policyholders,
agents, and intermediaries, and is not directed towards protection of investors. A.M. Best ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities of the Company.

During 2006, 98% of Independence American’s premiums earned were derived from assumed reinsurance
premiums. In 2006, 83% of this premium was related to medical stop-loss business, 1 1% was related to fully insured
health business, and 6% was related to short-term statutory disability benefit product in New York State (“DBL").
Of the medical stop-loss premium, 82% was gencrated from pro rata reinsurance treaties with Standard Security
Life Insurance Company of New York (“Standard Security Life™) and Madison National Life Insurance Company,
Inc. (*Madison National Life”) pursuant to which Standard Security Life and Madison National Life will cede, at
treaty renewals, at least 13% (and may cede up 10 30%) of their gross medical stop-loss premiums written 10
Independence American. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life are wholly owned, indirect subsidiaries
of Independence Holding Company (collectively referred 10 as “IHC™), which owns 48% of the Company’s
outstanding stock. For 2006, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceded an average of 22.2% of their
medical stop-loss business to Independence American. The reinsurance treaties between Independence American
and Standard Security Life and Independence American and Madison National Life terminate December 31, 2014,
unless terminated sooner by Independence American. Standard Security Life, which is domiciled in New York, has
an A (Excellent) rating from A.M. Best, and is licensed as an insurance company in all 50 states, the District of
Columbia, the Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico. Madison National Life, which is domiciled in Wisconsin, has an A-
(Excellent) rating from A.M. Best, is licensed to sell insurance products in 49 states, the District of Columbia,
Guam, American Samoa and the U.S. Virgin Islands, and is an accredited reinsurer in New York. The balance of the
medical stop-loss assumed reinsurance premium was related to business written by unaffiliated carriers on eight
other programs. For 2006, Independence American received between 15% and 25% of the premium on these
unaffiliated programs. For more general information on types of reinsurance, see “Reinsurance” below. In 2006,
Independence American wrote a nominal amount of medical stop-loss, and short-term medical {“STM”) on a direct

7




basis. In 2007, Independence American will begin writing a significant amount of small group majcr medical,
medical stop-loss and major medical plans for individuals and families. The Company’s strategic plan is (o continue
to expand the fully insured health and medical stop-loss business written by Independence American

Medical Stop-Loss

Independence American primarily reinsures employer medical stop-loss insurance for self-insired group
medical plans. Self-insured plans permit employers flexibility in designing employee health coverages a a cost that
may be lower than that available through other health care plans provided by an insurer or health maintenance
organization (“HMO”). Employer medical stop-loss insurance allows self-insured employers to manage the risk of
excessive health insurance costs under self-funded plans by limiting the employer’s health care ex)enses to a
predetermined amount. This stop-loss coverage is available on either a “specific” or a “‘specific and aggregate”
basis. Specific stop-loss coverage reimburses employers for large claims incurred by an individual e:nployee or
dependent. When an employee or dependent’s covered claims exceed the specific stop-loss deductib e, covered
amounts in excess of the deductible are reimbursable to the employer under the specific stop-loss 1olicy. The
specific stop-loss deductible is selected based on the number of covered employees, the employer’s apacity to
assume some of the risk, and the medical claim experience of the plan. Aggregate stop-loss coverage protects the
employer against fluctuations due to claim frequency. The employer’s overall claim liability is limited to a certain
dollar amount, often referred to as the attachment point. An aggregate stop-loss policy usually pro 7ides reim-
bursement when coverage claims for the plan as a whole exceed the aggregate attachment point. Many >f the stop-
loss policies Independence American reinsures cover specific claims only. Standard Security Life a1 d Madison
National Life market employer medical stop-loss insurance nationaily through a network of manag.ng general
underwriters (“MGUs™), which are non-salaried contractors that receive administrative fees. As of December 31,
2006, Standard Security Life marketed this product through 11 MGUs, including IndependenceCare, RS, Marlion
and Majestic. As of December 31, 2006, Madison National Life marketed this product through fur MGUS,
including IndependenceCare. MGUs are responsible for establishing an employer’s conditions for :overage in
accordance with guidelines formulated and approved by Standard Security Life and Madison National _ife, billing
and collecting premiums from the employers, paying commissions to agents, third-party administrato s (“TPAs”)
and/or brokers, and adjudicating claims. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life are resjonsible for
selecting MGUs, establishing underwriting guidelines, maintaining approved policy forms and review ng employ-
ers’ claims for reimbursement, as well as establishing appropriate accounting procedures and reserv :s.

Since 2002, Independence American has issued and/or reinsured managed care excess coverages, including
provider excess loss insurance and HMO Reinsurance. Independence American issues and reinsues provider
excess loss insurance on a specific loss basis only. This product is marketed to providers, minaged care
organizations, including provider hospital organizations, hospital groups, physician groups and indivic ual practice
associations that have assumed risk (through capitation by an HMO or otherwise) and desire to redu:e their risk
assumption and/or are required to purchase coverage by contract or regulation. Independence Americar is currently
approved to write provider excess loss insurance in 14 states. This product is written through Indepe ndenceCare
which is responsible for marketing, underwriting, billing and collection of premiums, and medicall:* managing,
administering and adjudicating claims. Independence American also reinsures provider excess lo s insurance
written through IndependenceCare and issued by Standard Security Life on a specific loss basis only. It dependence
American reinsures HMO Reinsurance coverage written by Standard Security Life and marketed through
IndependenceCare. This coverage protects HMOs against excess losses incurred under an HMO health plan
and is marketed to HMOs that desire to reduce their risk assumption andfor are required to purchase coverage by
contract or regulation.

As of December 31, 2006, Independence American had employer medical stop-loss policies approved in
36 states. Pursuant to an agreement entered into in 2006 with Employers Direct Health (“EDH”), Tiidependence
American began writing employer medical stop-loss business. This block is expected to total, on a1 annualized
basis, approximately $6 million as of December 31, 2007 (see Note 5 of Notes to Consolidat:d Financial
Statements). Primarily as a result of this marketing agreement, AMIC anticipates significant growt1 in medical
stop-loss business written by Independence American in 2007 and in future years, and believes that the amount of
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this line of business reinsured will remain relatively stable unless IHC greatly expands the amount of business
written by its carriers.

Fully Insured Health
Small Employer Group Major Medical

During 2006, Independence American reinsured 10% of the group major medical business written by Standard
Security Life and Madison National Life, including consumer-driven health plans (“CDHPs™). This business,
generally written through agents and brokers that receive commissions, is fully insured major medical coverage
designed to work with health reimbursement accounts (“HRA") and health savings accounts (“HSA™) which are
implemented by employers that wish to provide this benefit as part of an employee welfare benefit plan. These plans
are offered primarily as preferred provider organizations (“PPO™) plans, and provide a variety of cost-sharing
options, including deductibles, coinsurance and co-payment. Independence American has begun filing group major
medical and major medical plans for individvals and families that include CDHP products. Pursuant to the
marketing agreement with EDH described above, Independence American will begin writing group major medical
business in 2007, which is expected to total, on an annualized basis, approximately $23 million. Independence
American initially anticipates retaining 65% of the risk on this business. Primarily as a result of the EDH marketing
agreement, AMIC anticipates significant growth in this line of business beginning in 2007 and in future years. In
addition, [HC has announced that it anticipates ineaningful growth in this line of business in 2007 and in future
years, which would mean more reinsurance premium for Independence American assuming the existing reinsur-
ance treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life remain in effect,

Major Medical for Individuals and Families

In 2006, the Company has entered into an agreement with a national, career agent marketing organization to
begin marketing health plans to individuals and families utilizing Independence American as the carrier. The
agency projects that it will have $10 million of annualized premiums ($6 million on an earned basis) on
Independence American paper as of December 31, 2007, Independence American initially anticipates retaining
50% of the risk on this business. The program will be administered by Insurers Administrative Corporation, a
wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of IHC. These amounts are less than what was initially disclosed due to a later
than anticipated launch date as a result of product design changes and filing requirements.

Short-Term Medical (“STM”)

During 2006, Independence American reinsured 10% of the STM business written by Standard Security Life
and Madison National Life. This business, primarily written through agents and brokers that receive commissions,
is designed specifically for people with transient needs for health coverage. Typically, STM products are written as
major medical coverage with a defined duration, which is normally twelve months or less. Among the typical
purchasers of STM products would be self-employed professionals, recent college graduates, people between jobs,
employed individuals not currentiy eligible for group insurance, and others who need insurance for a specified
period of time. IHC has announced that it anticipates meaningful growth in this line of business in 2007 and in future
years, which would mean more reinsurance premium for Independence American, assuming the existing rein-
surance treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life remain in effect. In addition, Independence
American will continue to seek alternative distribution channels that would give it an opportunity to write this
business on its paper.

Short-term Statutory Disability

Commencing in July 2004, Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-
term statutory disability benefit product in New York State (“DBL”). All companies with more than one employee
in New York State are required to provide DBL insurance for their employees. DBL coverage provides temporary
cash payments to replace wages lost as a result of disability due to non-occupational injury or illness. The DBL
policy provides for (i} payment of 50% of salary to a maximum of $170 per week; (i) a maximum of 26 weeks in a
consecutive 52 week period; and (iii) benefit commencement on the eighth consecutive day of disability. Policies
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covering fewer than 50 employees have fixed rates approved by the New York State Insurance Departmen:. Policies
covering 50 or more employees are individually underwritten. The DBL business is marketed primarily through
independent general agents.

AMIC expects the reinsurance premium from this line of business to remain relatively stable, ass iming the
existing reinsurance treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life remain in effect.

Managing General Underwriters

The MGU's are responsible for marketing, underwriting, billing and collecting premiums and adr inistering
and processing claims. IndependenceCare and RAS are the two MGU Subsidiaries acquired as part of the
November 2002 transaction with IHC. IndependenceCare markets and underwrites employer medical stop-loss,
provider excess loss and HMO Reinsurance products for Standard Security Life, Madison National ].ife, Inde-
pendence American and another carrier. IndependenceCare currently has two operating subsidiaries Indepen-
denceCare Underwriting Services — Minneapolis L.L.C. and IndependenceCare Underwriting ervices —
MidAtlantic LLC. During 2006, IndependenceCare Underwriting Services — Tennessee L.L.C., Indc pendence-
Care Underwriting Services — Southwest L.L.C. were converted from MGUs to regional sales offices. RAS
markets and underwrites employer medical stop-loss and group life for Standard Security Life, Madiscn National
Life and another carrier,

The Company acquired, on February 10, 2003, but effective as of January 1, 2003, 80% of the business of two
affiliated employer medical stop-loss MGUs (the “Acquired MGUs”). The acquisition was accomplis 1ed by the
formation of Marlton Risk Group LLC (“Marlton”)} into which the Acquired MGUs contributed all of tieir assets,
and the Company contributed $16,000,000 cash for an 80% ownership interest. The Company’s cash ¢ ntribution
was then distributed to the Acquired MGUs together with the remaining 20% interest in Marlton, and Marlton
assumed all of the liabilities of the Acquired MGUs. Marlton is an MGU for employer medical stop-los: and group
life for Standard Security Life, Madison National Life and two other carriers. Current senior man: gement of
Marlton own the remaining 20%.

On July 13, 2004, the Company acquired a 23% interest in Majestic Underwriters LLC (*Ma estic”), an
employer medical stop-loss MGU. IHC owns 52% of Majestic and Majestic’s management owns the remaining
25%. The purchase price for AMIC’s interest in Majestic was $1,610,000.

On April 16, 2004, the Company expanded its business through the acquisition of substantially all « f the assets
of an employer medical stop-loss managing general underwriter for a purchase price of $600,000. The assets were
acquired by IndependenceCare Underwriting Services — MidAtlantic LLC (“ICH-MidAtlantic™). This acquisition
resulted in goodwill in the amount of $486,000 and intangible assets in the amount of $114,000.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance is an arrangement in which an insurance company (the “reinsurer”) agrees to indemuify another
insurance company (the “ceding company”) against all or a portion of the insurance risks underwritten b / the ceding
company under one or more insurance contracts. Reinsurance provides a ceding company witt additional
underwriting capacity by permitting it to accept larger risks and write more business than would be possible
without an accompanying increase in statutory capital and surplus. There are two basic types of reinsurance
arrangements: treaty and facultative reinsurance. In treaty reinsurance, the ceding company is obligatec to cede and
the reinsurer is obligated to assume a specified portion of a type of category of risks insured by the cedi g company.
Treaty reinsurers do not separately evaluate each of the individual risks assumed under their t:eaties and,
consequently, after a review of the ceding company’s underwriting practices, are largely dependent on the original
risk underwriting decisions made by the ceding company. In facultative reinsurance, the ceding company cedes and
the reinsurer assumes all or part of the risk under a single insurance contract, Independence American c rrently only
participates in treaty reinsurance. Both treaty and facultative reinsurance can be written on either a pro rata basis or
an excess of loss basis. Under pro rata reinsurance, the ceding company and the reinsurer share the premiums as well
as the losses and expenses in an agreed proportion, Under excess of loss reinsurance, the reinsurer ind :mnifies the
ceding company against all or a specified portion of losses and expenses in excess of a specified dcllar amount,
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known as the ceding company’s retention or reinsurer’s attachment point, generally subject to a negotiated
reinsurance contract limit, Premiums paid by the ceding company 1o a reinsurer for excess of loss reinsurance are
not directly proportional to the premiums that the ceding company receives because the reinsurer does not assume a
proportionate risk. In pro rata reinsurance, the reinsurer generally pays the ceding company a ceding commission.
The ceding commission generally is based on the ceding company’s cost of acquiring and managing the business
being reinsured (commissions, premium taxes, assessments and miscellaneous administrative expenses). Inde-
pendence American participates in pro rata reinsurance for their medical stop-loss business,

Federal Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

At December 31, 2006, AMIC had consolidated net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs™) of approximately
$2776 million for federal income tax purposes. Some or all of the NOL carryforwards may be available to offset, for
federal income tax purposes, the future taxable income, if any, of AMIC as described in more detail in Note 13 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has not audited any of AMIC’s
tax returns for any of the years during the carryforward period, including those returns for the years in which the
losses giving rise to the NOL carryforward were reported.

AMIC’s ability to utilize its NOL's would be substantially reduced if AMIC were 10 undergo an “ownership
change” within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™).
Generally, an “ownership change™ occurs if one or more “5% Stockholders” (which generally includes any
stockholder who owns five percent or more in value of a company’s capital stock) increase their aggregate
percentage ownership by more than 50 percentage points over the lowest percentage of stock owned by such
stockholders over the preceding three-year period. For this purpose, all holders who each own less than five percent
of a company’s capital stock generally are treated together as a single “5% Stockholder.” In addition, certain
attribution rules, which generally attribute ownership of stock to the ultimate beneficial owner thereof without
regard to ownership by nominees, trusts, corporations, partnerships, or other entities, are applied to determine the
level of stock ownership of a particular stockholder. Transactions in the public markets among stockholders owning
less than five percent of the equity securities are generally not included in the calculation, but acquisitions by a
person causing that person to become a five percent or more stockholder may be treated as a five percentage (or
more) point change in ownership, regardless of the size of the purchase that caused the threshold to be exceeded.

In order o reduce the risk of an ownership change, in November 2002, AMIC’s stockholders approved an
amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation restricting transfers of shares of its common stock that could result in
the imposition of limitations on the use, for federal, state and city income tax purpases, of AMIC’s carryforwards of
net operating losses and certain federal income tax credits. The Certificate of Incorporation generally restricts any
person from attempting to sell, transfer or dispose, or purchase or acquire any AMIC stock, if such transfer would
affect the percentage of AMIC stock owned by a 5% stockholder. Any person attempting such a transfer will be
required, prior to the date of any proposed transfer, to request in writing that the board of directors review the
proposed transfer and authorize or not authonize such proposed transfer. Any attempted transfer made in violation of
the stock transfer restrictions will be null and void. In the event of an attempted or purpotted transfer involving a sale
or disposition of capital stock in violation of stock transfer restrictions, the transferor shall remain the owner of such
shares. Notwithstanding such transfer restrictions, there could be circumstances under which an issuance by AMIC
of a significant number of new shares of Common Stock or other new class of equity security having certain
characteristics (for example, the right to vote or convert into Common Stock) might result in an ownership change
under the Code.

Investments and Reserves

Independence American’s securities portfolio is managed by employees of IHC and its affiliates, and ultimate
investment authority rests with Independence American’s board of directors. As a result of the nature of its
insurance liabilities, Independence American endeavors to maintain a significant percentage of its assets in
investment grade securities, cash and cash eguivalents, At December 31, 2006, 99.6% of the fixed maturities were
investment grade. The internal investment group provides a summary of the investment porifolio and the
performance thereof at the meetings of the Company’s board of directors.




Liabilities for insurance reserves were computed using information derived from actual historica. premium
and claims data. This method is widely used in the health insurance industry to estimate the liabilities fo. insurance
reserves. Inherent in this calculation is management and actuarial judgments and estimates which could signif-
icantly impact the ending reserve liabilities and, consequently, operating results. Actual results may diffe:, and these
estimates are subject to interpretation and change. See Critical Accounting Policies for further exp.anation of
insurance reserve calculation.

Under Delaware insurance law, there are restrictions relating to the percentage of an insurer’s adm tied assets
that may be invested in a specific issuer or in the aggregate in a particular type of investment. In additio 1, there are
qualitative investment restrictions.

Competition and Regulation

Independence American competes with many larger insurance and reinsurance companies and me naged care
organizations. The MGU Subsidiaries compete with many other managing general underwriters, insurance
companies, HMOs and other managed care organizations.

The Company is an insurance holding company; as such, it is subject to regulation and supervi:ion by the
insurance supervisory agency of Delaware, Independence American is also subject to regulation and suj ervision in
all jurisdictions in which it is licensed to transact business. These supervisory agencies have broad adtainistrative
powers with respect to the granting and revocation of licenses to transact business, the licensing of agents, the
approval of policy forms, the approval of commission rates, the form and content of mandatory financial statements,
reserve requirements and the types and maximum amounts of investments which may be made. Such r:gulation is
primarily designed for the benefit of policyholders rather than the stockholders of an insurance compan; " or holding
company.

Certain transactions within the holding company system are also subject to regulation and supervision by such
regulatory agencies. All such transactions must be fair and equitable. Notice to or prior approval by thz insurance
department is required with respect to transactions affecting the ownership or control of an insurer an1 of certain
material transactions, incleding dividend declarations, between an insurer and any person in its holdit g company
system. Under Delaware insurance laws, “control” is defined as the possession, directly or indirectly, f the power
to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, and is presumed to exist if any person,
directly or indirectly, owns, controls or holds with the power to vote ten percent or more of the voting : ecurities of
any other person. An agreement to acquire control of an insurer domiciled in Delaware must be appryved by the
Commissioner of Insurance of Delaware. In addition, periodic disclosure is required concerning the operations,
management and financial condition of the insurer within the holding company system. An insurer is a so required
to file detailed Annual Statements with each supervisory agency, and its affairs and financial condition: are subject
to periodic examination.

Risk-based capital requirements are imposed on property and casualty insurance companies. Th: risk-based
capital ratio is determined by dividing an insurance company’s total adjusted capital, as defined, by it authorized
control level risk-based capital. Companies that do not meet certain minimum standards require specificd corrective
action. The risk-based capital ratio for Independence American exceeds such minimum ratios.

Discontinued Operations

Prior to becoming an insurance holding company in November 2002, the Company (then know 1 as SoftNet
Systems, Inc.) was a holding company principally engaged in providing Internet services. As of September 30,
2002, the Company had discontinued the businesses of Intelligent Communications, Inc. (“Intellicon ™), Aerzone
Corporation (“Aerzone”), ISP Channel, Inc. (“ISP Channel”), Kansas Communications, Inc. (*KCI”), and
Micrographic Technology Corporation (“MTC”). Due to difficult and deteriorating conditions in hat market,
the Company wound down these businesses. In December 2000, the Company’s board of directors apy roved a plan
to discontinue the operations of its subsidiary, ISP Channel, which had provided cabie-based Internet access and
related services, and the operations of another subsidiary, Aerzone, which provided Internet and relate 1 services at
airports. In April 2002, the Company ceased operations of its remaining operating subsidiary, Intellico n, following
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the disposition of its key assets. In connection with the Company’s exit from the Internet provider business, it
undertook a process of consideration of strategic aliernatives for the Company.

On July 30, 2002, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire First Standard Holdings Corp. (“FSHC™)
from SSH Corp. and Independence Holding Company (“IHC™) for $31.92 million in cash. As described below,
FSHC was the holding company for an insurance company and two MGUSs. Subsequently, at the Special Meeting of
Stockholders on November 14, 2002, the Company’s stockholders approved the stock purchase agreement between
the Company, SSH Corp. and THC (the “Purchase Agreement™), and approved the Company’s name change to
American Independence Corp. Alsc on November 14, 2002, the Company consummated the transactions con-
templated by the Purchase Agreement and FSHC changed its name to Independence American Holdings Corp.
("1AHC"). Following this acquisition, the Company closed its offices in San Francisco, terminated all but two of its
employees, and entered into a services agreement with IHC pursuant to which the Company’s operations are
primarily directed by IHC’s management and employees.

In a separate transaction, on July 30, 2002, [HC acquired Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited’s (“PCCW”)
entire interest in the Company consisting of 1,666,666 shares of common stock at $9.00 per share for a total value of
$15 million. As a result of this transaction, PCCW’s two appointees resigned from the Company’s board of
directors, and Edward Netter, Chairman of IHC, and Roy T.K. Thung, President and Chief Executive Officer of
IHC, were appointed to the Company’s board of directors. On April 22, 2003, a wholly owned subsidiary of I[HC
completed its tender for one million shares of the common stock of the Company at $9.00 per share for a total value
of $9,000,000. On December 22, 2003, IHC purchased 613,401 shares in the market and through private
transactions. During 2004, THC purchased an additional 1% interest in the Company, bringing its aggregate
interest in the Company to 40%. During 2005, 1HC purchased an additional 8% interest, bringing its current
aggregate interest in the Company to 48%.

The operating results of these discontinued operations have been segregated from continuing operations and
are reported as a gain (loss) from discontinued operations on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Although
it is difficult to predict the final results, the loss on disposition from discontinued operations includes management’s
estimates of costs to wind down the business and costs to settle its outstanding liabilities. The actual results could
differ from these estimates. The estimated loss on disposition reserve of all discontinued operations is reflected in
net liabilities associated with discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The cash
flows used in discontinued operations are presented separately in the operating activities section of the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. There were no cash flows associated with investing and financing activities for the years
presented for discontinued operations.

Discontinued Operations of Intelligent Communications, Inc.

On March 29, 2002, the Company ard its wholly owned subsidiary, Intellicom, entered into an agreement (o
sell its operating business and certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc. Following the sale of its operating business and
certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc., the Company’s board of directors unanimously agreed to cease the operations
of Intellicom on April 3, 2002. Principally due to the Company’s guaranty of Intellicom’s lease for its facitity in
Livermore, California, the Company has reserves for discontinued operations of Intellicom of $555,000 for this
liability at December 31, 2006, and $808,000 at December 31, 2005. In October of 2006, the Company entered into
an agreement with a third party to sublease the property in Livermore, California for the remaining life of the lease.
The income associated with the sublease is reflected in the reserve balance.

Discontinued Operations of Aerzone Corporation

On January 24, 2000, the Company founded Aerzone (formerly SofiNet Zone, Inc.) to provide high-speed
Internet access to global business travelers. As part of the Aerzone business, the Company acquired Laptop Lane, on
April 21, 2000. On December 19, 2000, the Company decided to discontinue the Aerzone business in light of
significant long-term capital needs and the difficulty of securing the necessary financing because of the current state
of the financial markets. The Company has no remaining reserve in net liabilities associated with discontinued
operations for Aerzone at December 31, 2006,
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Discontinued Operations of ISP Channel, Inc.

On December 7, 2000, the Company’s board of directors approved a plan to discontinue providing c: ble-based
Internet services through its ISP Channel subsidiary by December 31, 2000, because consolidation in the cable
television industry made it difficult for ISP Channel to achieve the economies of scale necessary to provide such
services profitably, and the Company was no longer able to bear the costs of maintaining ISP Chennel. The
Company has no remaining reserve in net liabilities associated with discontinued operations for ISP ( ‘hannel at
December 31, 2006,

Discontinued Operations of Micrographic Technology Corporation

As a result of the December 31, 1999 sale of MTC to Global Information Distribution GmbH (*131D7), the
Company discontinued operations of MTC. The Company has no remaining reserve in net liabilities assox ;iated with
discontinued operations for MTC at December 31, 2006.

Discontinued Operations of Kansas Communications, Inc

As aresult of the February 12, 1999 sale of the assets of the telecommunications segment, KCI, to (lonvergent
Communications Services, Inc., the Company discontinued this segment. The Company has no remaininy; reserve in
net liabilities associated with discontinued operations for KCI at December 31, 2006.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries, collectively, had 59 employees as of December 31, 2006.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones that the Company faces but only those
identified by the Company, in accordance with the requirements of ltem 503(c) of Regulation 5-K, as bei1g the most
significant factors that make investment in the Company speculative or risky and that have special applic ation to the
Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Compar y currently
deems less significant than identified herein may also make investment in the Company speculative . risky.

If any of the adverse events associated with the risks described below occurs, the Company s business,
financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the traaing price of
the Company’s common stock could decline,

The Company’s Loss Reserves are Based on an Estimate of Its Future Liability, and if Actual \"laims
Prove to be Greater Than The Company’s Reserves, Its Results of Operations and Financial Condition
May Be Adversely Affected

The Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, including legal and other fees, and costs not associated with specific claims but related tc the claims
payment functions for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting peri d. Because
setting reserves is inherently uncertain, the Company cannot be sure that current reserves will prove ade juate. If the
Company’s reserves are insufficient to cover its actual losses and loss adjustment expenses, the Company would have
to augment its reserves and incur a charge to its earnings, and these charges could be material. Resi rves do not
represent an exact calculation of liability. Rather, reserves represent an estimate of what the Company expects the
ultimate settlement and administration of claims will cost. These estimates, which generally involve actuanial
projections, are based on the Company’s assessment of facts and circumstances then known. Many factors could affect
these reserves, including economic and social conditions, frequency and severity of claims, medical tre nd resulting
from the influences of underlying cost inflation, changes in utilization and demand for medical services, and changes
in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards in litigation. Many of these items are not directly qu antifiable in
advance. Additionally, there may be a significant reporting lag between the occurrence of the insured ¢ vent and the
time it is reported to the Company. The inherent uncertainties of estimating reserves are greater for certain types of
liabilities, particularly those in which the various considerations affecting the type of claim are subject t change and
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in which long periods of time may elapse before a definitive determination of liability is made. Reserve estimates are
continually refined in a regular and ongoing process as experience develops and further claims are reported and settled.
Adjustments to reserves are reflected in the results of the periods in which such estimates are changed.

The Company’s Results May Fluctuate as a Result of Factors Generally Affecting the Insurance and
Reinsurance Industry

The results of companies in the insurance and reinsurance industry historically have been subject to significant
fluctuations and uncertainties. Factors that affect the industry in general could also cause the Company’s results to
fluctuate. The industry’s and the Company’s financial condition and results of operations may be affected
significantly by:

» Fluctuations in interest rates, inflationary pressures and other changes in the investment environment, which
affect returns on invested capital;

= Rising levels of actual costs that are not known by companies at the time they price their products;
» Losses related to epidemics, terrorist activities, random acts of violence or declared or undeclared war;

+ Changes in reserves resulting from different types of claims that may arise and the development of judicial
interpretations relating to the scope of insurers’ liability;

* The overall level of economic activity and the competitive environment in the industry;
» Greater than expected use of healthcare services by members;

+ New mandated benefits or other regulatory changes that change the scope of business or increase the
Company’s costs; and

* Fatlure of MGUs to adhere to underwriting guidelines as required by the Company in its MGU agreements.

The occurrence of any or a combination of these factors, which is beyond the Company’s control, could have a
material adverse effect on its results.

If the Rating Agencies Downgrade Independence American, the Company’s Results of Operations and
Competitive Position in the Industry May Suffer

Ratings are an important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance companies. Independence
American is rated B++ (Good) by A.M. Best Company, Inc., whose ratings reflect its opinions of an insurance
company’s financial strength, operating performance, strategic position, and ability to meet its obligations to
policyholders, and are not evaluations directed to investors. The rating of Independence American is subject to
periodic review by A.M. Best Company, Inc., and the Company is not assured of the continued retention of this
rating. If A.M. Best Company, Inc. reduces Independence American’s ratings from its current levels, the Company's
business would be adversely affected.

Stock Transfer Restrictions

Although the stock transfer restrictions contained in the Certificate of Incorporation are intended to reduce the
likelihood of an ownership change, it will not prevent all transfers that might result in an “ownership change.”
Furthermore, certain changes in relationships and other events not addressed by the stock transfer restrictions could
cause AMIC to undergo an “ownership change.” Section 382 of the Code is an extremely complex provision with
respect to which there are many uncertainties. In addition, AMIC has not requested a ruling from the IRS regarding the
effectiveness of the stock transfer restrictions and, therefore, AMIC cannot be certain that the IRS will agree that the
stock transfer restrictions are effective for purposes of Section 382 of the Code. Further, AMIC cannot assure that the
stock transfer restrictions or portions thereof will be enforceable in Delaware courts or that the IRS would agree that all
of AMIC’s 1ax net operating loss carryforwards are allowable. 1n addition, AMIC’s board of directors may determine,
in its sole discretion, to permit a restricted transfer that results in an “ownership change” if it determines that such
transfer is in the best interests of AMIC. Therefore, the stock transfer restrictions were (o reduce, but not necessary
eliminate, the risk that Section 382 of the Code will cause limitations on the use of tax attributes of AMIC,
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The Company’s Inability to Assess Underwriting Risk Accurately Could Reduce Its Net Income

The Company’s success is dependent on its ability to assess accurately the risks associated with the bus nesses
on which the risk is retained. If the Company fails to assess accurately the risks it retains, the Company may fail to
establish the appropriate premium rates and the Company’s reserves may be inadequate 1o cover its losses, re«uiring
augmentation of the reserves, which in turn would reduce the Company’s net income.

The Company’s agreements with its producers (including its MGUs) require that the producers follow
underwriting guidelines published by the Company and amended from time to time. Failure to follov/ these
guidelines may result in termination or modification of the agreement. The Company performs periodic adits to
confirm adherence to the guidelines, but it is possible that the Company would not detect a breach in the gui lelines
for some time after the infraction which could result in a material impact on the Net Loss Ratio for that produ :er and
could have an adverse impact on the Company’s operating results.

If the Company is Unsuccessful in Competing Against Larger or More Well-Established Competitois, Its
Results of Operations and Financial Condition Will Be Adversely Affected

The Company’s industry is highly competitive and has experienced severe price competition from time to time
over the last several years. The Company faces competition from domestic and international insurarce and
reinsurance companies, from underwriting agencies, and from diversified financial services companies -hat are
significantly larger than the Company. Some of these competitors have greater financial, marketing and other
resources, have been operating longer than the Company and have established long-term and continuing tusiness
relationships through the industry, which can be a significant competitive advantage. In addition to compe'ition in
the operation of its business, the Company faces competition from a variety of sources in attracting and r« taining
qualified employees. The Company cannot assure that it will maintain its current competitive positior in the
markets in which it operates, or that it will be able to expand its operations into new markets and compete eff :ctively
in the future. If the Company fails to do so, its business could be materially adversely affected.

If the Company Fails to Comply with Extensive State and Federal Regulations, It Will Be Subject 10 Pen-
alties, Which May Include Fines and Suspension and Which May Adversely Affect Its Results of Cpera-
tions and Financial Condition.

The Company is subject to extensive governmental regulation and supervision. Most insurance regulations are
designed to protect the interests of policyholders rather than stockholders and other investors. This regulation, g snerally
administered by a department of insurance in each state in which it does business, relates to, among other things:

» Approval of policy forms and premium rates;

» Standards of solvency, including risk-based capital measurements, which are a measure develope | by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners and used by state insurance regulators to identify
insurance companies that potentially are inadequately capitalized;

* Licensing of insurers and their agents;

« Restrictions on the nature, quality and concentration of investments;

« Restrictions on the ability of Independence American to pay dividends to the Company;

« Restrictions on transactions between insurance companies and their affiliates;

» Restrictions on the size of risks insurable under a single policy;

* Requiring deposits for the benefit of policyholders;

» Requiring certain methods of accounting;

« Prescribing the form and content of records of financial condition required to be filed; and

+ Requiring reserves for uncarmed premium, losses and other purposes.
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State insurance departments also conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance companies and
require the filing of annual and other reports relating to the financial condition of insurance companies, holding
company issues and other matters.

The Company’s business depends on compliance with applicable laws and regulations and its ability to
maintain valid licenses and approvals for its operations. Regulatory authorities have broad discretion to grant,
renew, or revoke licenses and approvals. Regulatory authorities may deny or revoke licenses for various reasons,
including the violation of regulations. In some instances, the Company follows practices based on its interpretations
of regulations, or those that it believes to be generally followed by the industry, which may be different from the
requirements or interpretations of regulatory authorities. If the Company does not have the requisite licenses and
approvals and does not comply with applicable regulatory requirements, the insurance regulatory authorities could
preclude or temporarily suspend it from carrying on some or all of its activities or otherwise penalize it. That type of
action could have a material adverse effect on its business. Also, changes in the level of regulation of the insurance
industry (whether federal, state or foreign), or changes in laws or regulations themselves or interpretations by
regulatory authorities, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business.

Decreases in the Fair Market Value of Fixed Maturities May Greatly Reduce the Value of the Company’s
Investment Portfolio, and as a Result, the Company’s Financial Condition May Suffer

At December 31, 2006, fixed maturities represented $42.7 million or 75% of the Company’s total investments
of $57.2 million. The fair market value of fixed maturities and the related investment income fluctuates depending
on general economic and market conditions. The fair market value of these investments generally increases or
decreases in an inverse relationship with fluctuations in interest rates, while net investment income realized by the
Company will generally increase or decrease in line with changes in market interest rates. In addition, actual net
investment income and/or cash flows from investments that carry prepayment risk, such as mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities, may differ from those anticipated at the time of investment as a result of interest rate
fluctuations. An investment has prepayment risk when there is a risk that the timing of cash flows that result from
the repayment of principal might occur earlier than anticipated because of declining interest rates or later than
anticipated because of rising interest rates. The impact of market value fluctuations affects the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. Because all of the Company’s fixed maturities are classified as available for
sale, changes in the fair market value of the Company’s securities are reflected in the Company’s stockholders’
equity (accumulated other comprehensive income or loss). No similar adjustment is made for liabilities to reflect a
change in interest rates. Therefore, interest rate fluctuations and economic conditions could adversely affect the
Company’s stockholders’ equity, total comprehensive income and/or cash flows.

IHC Will Exercise Significant Influence Over the Company’s Business and Affairs, Which May Result in
Potential Conflicts of Interest Between IHC and the Company; Reliance on IHC’s Expertise

The Company’s operations are being directed by IHC management and employees, which may result in
potential conflicts of interest between IHC and the Company. For example, a conflict may arise if IHC were to
engage in activities or pursue corporation opportunities that overlap with the Company’s business. Because IHC’s
management will also constitute the Company’s management, these individuals will have fiduciary duties to both
companies, which could result in conflicts of interest, including the Company foregoing opportunities or taking
actions that disproportionately benefit IHC. IHC will also have at least two representatives on the Company’s board
of directors who will have similar conflicts of interest. In addition, the Company is relying upon the management
and expertise of officers of [HC who also serve as officers of the Company.

The Occurrence of Various Events May Adversely Affect the Company’s Ability to Utilize Fully Its Tax
Net Operating Loss Carryforwards,

The Company has U.S. federal tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $276 million, which may
be used against any profits from the Company’s business. However, events outside of the contro! of the Company or
IHC, such as certain acquisitions and dispositions of the Company’s common stock, may limit the use of all or a
portion of the Company’s tax net operating loss carryforwards. If such events were to occur, the Company’s
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expectation of using its tax net operating loss carryforwards against potential profits would not be realize 1 and the
Company could potentiatly have a higher tax liability in the future than it would otherwise have had.

Certain Proposed Federal and State Legislation May, if Adopted, Adversely Affect the Company’s Bu:iness

In the continuing debate over health-care reform, certain federal and state legislation has been proposed hat could
have the effect of fundamentally altering the dynamics of the industry in which the Company competes, including
imposing mandatory universat health-care coverage, or otherwise resulting in a much larger role for governn ent in the
provision of health care. We cannot predict which, if any, of such broad-based proposals will be enacted int > law and
what the effect would be (either positive or negative) on the Company’s business and results of operations

Additionally, less-fundamental change in the regulatory requirements imposed on the Company ma * harm its
business or results of operations. For example, some states have imposed new time limits for the pzyment of
uncontested covered claims and required health-care and dental service plans to pay interest on uncontesizd claims
not paid promptly within the required time period. Some states have also granted their insurance regulator: agencies
additional authority to impose monetary penalties and other sanctions on health and dental plans engaging in certain
unfair payment practices. If the Company were unable, for any reason, to comply with these requirements, it could
result in substantial costs to the Company and could materially adversely affect its results of oper:tions and
financial condition.

Certain Business Arrangements are Terminable by Other Parties

Commencing in July 2004, Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-
term statutory disability benefit product. Standard Security Life is not contractually obligated to contin e to cede
this business to Independence American after termination of the current treaty year. In 2005, Standard Se:urity Life
and Madison National Life began ceding 10% of the majority of THC's fully insured business to Ind-:pendence
American. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life are not contractually obligated to continue t > cede this
business to Independence American after termination of the current treaty years. Standard Security Life and
Madison National Life ceded 22.2% on average to Independence American in 2006, amounts in excess of 15% are
not contractually obligated. However, the AMIC MGUs are the largest producers of medical stop-loss b isiness for
IHC, controlling a majority of this premium in 2006.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

IndependenceCare leases 6,900 square feet of office space in Minneapolis, Minnesota, which expires on
May 31, 2008; 1,200 square feet in Franklin, Tennessee, which expires on June 30, 2007; and 3,100 sq 1are feet in
Austin, Texas, which expires on September 30, 2008. The Tennessee lease will not be renewed and the Company is
attempting to transfer the obligations under its Texas lease to a third party. RAS leases 4,200 square fe 2t of office
space in South Windsor, Connecticut, which expires on February 1, 2009. Marlton leases 6,000 square ft et of office
space in Voorhees, New Jersey, which expires on January 31, 20069.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of its businesses.
The Company has established reserves that it believes are sufficient given information presently availab e related to
its outstanding legal proceedings and claims. The Company believes the results of pending legal procedings and
claims are not expected to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or cash flows, althiough there
could be a material effect on its results of operations for a particular period.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submisted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2001
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Commaon Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Market Information

Since November 15, 2002, American Independence Corp. (“AMIC or the “Company”’) common stock has been
listed and traded on the Nasdaq National Market (“Nasdaq™) under the symbol “AMIC”. From April 14, 1999
through November 14, 2002, the Company’s common stock was traded and listed on Nasdaq under the symbol
“SOFN”. The following table sets forth the per share range of high and low sale prices for the Company’s common
stock, as reported on Nasdaq, for each quarter of 2006 and 2005:

High Low
Quarter Ended:
December 31, 2006, . . . ... e e e e $11.49 3 978
September 30, 2006 . . . ... .. $12.28 $10.36
June 30, 2006 . . . ... $12.45 $10.55
March 31, 2006 . . ... ... e $13.00 $10.95
High Low
Quarter Ended:
December 31, 2005 . ... ... e e e e $12.66 $10.75
September 30, 2005 . . ... e $1340 51235
June 30, 2005 . . e e $13.85 $12.04
March 31, 2005 . ... ... e $14.90 $13.05

Holders of Record

At Janvary 19, 2007, there were 78 record holders of the Company’s common stock. The closing price for the
Company's common stock at December 31, 2006 was $10.41.

AMIC’s ability to utilize its Federal Net Operating Loss Carrryforwards (*“NOLs”™) would be substantially
reduced it AMIC were to undergo an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382(g)(1) of the Internal
Revenue Code. AMIC will be treated as having had an “ownership change” if there is more than a 50% increase in
stock ownership during a three year *“testing period” by “5% stockholders™. In order to reduce the risk of an
ownership change, in November 2002, AMIC’s stockholders approved an amendment to its Certificate of
Incorporation restricting transfers of shares of its common stock that could result in the imposition of limitations
on the use, for federal, state and city income tax purposes, of AMIC’s carryforwards of net operating losses and
certain federal income tax credits. The Certificate of Incorporation generally restricts any person from attempting to
sell, transfer or dispose, or purchase or acquire any AMIC stock, if such transfer would affect the percentage of
AMIC stock owned by a 5% stockholder. Any person attempting such a transfer will be required, prior to the date of
any proposed transfer, to request in writing that the board of directors review the proposed transfer and authorize or
not authorize such proposed transfer. Any attempted transfer made in violation of the stock transfer restrictions will
be null and void. In the event of an attempted or purported transfer involving a sale or disposition of capital stock in
violation of stock transfer restrictions, the transferor shall remain the owner of such shares. Notwithstanding such
transfer restrictions, there could be circumstances under which an issuance by AMIC of a significant number of new
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shares of Common Stock or other new class of equity security having certain characteristics (for example, the right
to vote or convert into Common Stock) might result in an ownership change under the Code.

Dividends

The Company does not have any legal restriction on paying dividends, and no dividend on the Ccmpany’s
stock was declared during 2006.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The information under the heading “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the Company’s ¢ efinitive
proxy statement for the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company did not repurchase any of its outstanding equity securities during the quarter ended Decem-
ber 31, 2006.

20




Performance Graph

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the five year cumuiative total rzturn of the Common Stock with that
of the Nasdaq Stock Market (US) Index and the Nasdaq Stock Market Insurance Index. The graph assumes that
dividends were reinvested and is based on a $100 investinent on September 30, 2001. Indices data was obtained
from the Center for Research in Security Price (CRSP). The performance graph represents past performance and
should not be considered to be an indication of future performance.

Comparison of Five Year Comulative Total Return
Among AMIC, Nasdaq Stock Market (US) Index and Nasdaq Insurance Index

350
{1 AMIC
300 N
—%— Nasdaq Stock Index (U.S.} / \D\
250 | —O— Nasdaq Insurance Index
200 ~
s 150 o =1 = PO =
2 00 /
50
O T T ) T I L} T
9/2001 5/2002 12/2003 1272003 12/2004 12/2005 1242006
9/2001 9/2002 1272002 12/2003 1272004 1272605 12/2¢06
AMIC $100.00 | $154.00 | $183.00 | $264.00 | $327.00 | $257.00 | $233.00
Nasdaq Stock Index (U.S.) $100.00 | $ 79.00 | $ 90.00 | $134.00 | $146.00 | $149.00 | $164.00
Nasdaq Insurance Index $100.00 | $ 99.00 | $104.00 | $129.00 | $156.00 | $175.00 | $198.00

The Company’s website is www.americanindependencecorp.com.,
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following is a summary of selected consolidated financial data of the Company for each of the "ast five
years, The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the consnlidated
financial statements and related notes thereto and “Management’s Discussions and Analysis of Financial Cc.ndition
and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. (In thousands, except p :r share
data)

Quarter Ended Ye. r Ended
Year Ended December 31, December 31, Sep ember 30,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002(2) 02

Income Data:
Total revenues . .......... $ 81485 % 83130 $ 80,378 § 55,553 $ 2,688 3 1,730

Net income (loss) applicable
to common shares from

continuing operations .... $ 1508 §$ 5519 § 5664 3 12,561 %(5,557) $ 8,830)
Balance Sheet Data;
Total investments ......... $ 57,215 $ 48481 § 44469 § 38,258 $37,010 $10,910
Total assets ............. 134,760 129,732 124,395 112,868 23,489 0,814
Insurance liabilities. . ... ... 40,150 37,178 38,042 33,623 16,114 —
Long-term debt. . ... ...... —_ — — — — —
Stockholders’ equity . . .. ... 83,084 81,470 76,467 70,128 57,267 33,665

Per Share Data:

Basic income (loss) per
common share from

continuing operations . ... $ A8 % 6L 0§ 67 % 150 $ (.66) $ (1.05)
Diluted income (loss) per

common share from

continuing operations . ... $ 18 % 65 % 66 § 149 $ (.66) $ (1.05)
Book value per common

share ................ $ 982 $ 964 % 906 § 833 $ 6.82 $ 7.58

|

Notes:
Excludes all Internet service segments which are discontinued operations.

All per share data has been restated to show the effect of the Company’s one for three reverse split on Febiuary 13,
2003.

(a) In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company changed its fiscal year end from September 30 to Deceraber 31;
accordingly, results have been separately disclosed for the three — month transition period ended Deceinber 31,
2002.

The Selected Financial Data should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Iinancial
Statements and Notes thereto included in liem 8.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements and materials contained in this report, such as statements relating to managemen s views
with respect to future events and financial performance, may be considered “forward-looking statement..”,. Such
forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual ; esults to
differ materially from historical experience or from future results expressed or implied by such forwarc -looking
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statements. For a discussion of risk factors affecting the Company’s business and prospects, see Item 1A Risk
Factors.
Overview

The following is a summary of the results of operations for the Company (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
REVENUES. . . o ottt e e e e e e e $81,485 $83,130 $80,378
Bxpenses. ... e 79,017 77491 71,145
Income from continuing operations, before income tax . ......... 2,468 3,639 9,233
Provision {benefit) for income taxes. .. ... ..... ... oo 960 120 3,569
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of tax . .. (54} (59) 240
Netincome . ... ... . i $ 1454 35460 § 5904

The Company is an insurance holding company engaged in the insurance and reinsurance business through its
wholly owned insurance company, Independence American Insurance Company (*‘Independence American™) and
its managing general underwriter subsidiaries (the “MGUSs™) that currently specialize in medical stop-loss
insurance. Since November 2002, AMIC has been affiliated with Independence Holding Company (“IHC”),
which currently owns 48% of AMIC’s stock, and [HC’s senior management has provided direction to the Company
through service agreements between the Company and IHC. Independence American’s primary source of revenue is
reinsurance premiums. The majority of these premiums are ceded to Independence American from [HC under long-
term reinsurance treaties to cede its gross medical stop-loss premiums written to Independence American. In
addition, Independence American assumes fully insured health and short-term statutory disability benefit product in
New York State (“DBL") premiums from [HC, and assumes medical stop-loss premiums from unaffiliated carriers,
Independence American began writing medical stop-loss business in 2006 and will expand this line of business and
begin writing two fully insured health products in 2007.

While management considers a wide range of factors in its strategic planning, the overriding consideration is
underwriting profitability. Management's assessment of trends in healthcare and in the medical stop-loss market
play a significant role in determining whether to expand Independence American’s reinsurance participation
percentage or the number of programs it reinsures. Since Independence American reinsures a portion of all of the
business produced by the MGUSs, and since the MGUSs are also eligible to earn profit sharing commissions based on
the profitability of the business they write, the MGUs also emphasize underwriting profitability. In addition,
management focuses on controlling operating costs. By sharing employees with IHC and sharing resources among
the MGUs and Independence American, AMIC strives to maximize its earnings.

The following is a summary of key performance information and events:

Independence American Insurance Company

+ 2006 was negatively impacted by higher than expected claims from certain of Independence American’s
medical stop-loss programs. The Company recorded an overall Net Loss Ratio for medical stop-loss of
100.5%, 97.1% and 91.3% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Net Loss Ratio {“Net Loss Ratio”) is
defined as insurance benefits, claims and reserves, divided by (premiums earned less underwriting
expenses). Based on currently available information, business incepting in 2006, of which a material
portion will be earned and recorded in 2007, is projected to achieve a net loss ratio that is meaningfully lower
than that of business incepting in 2005, just as the net loss ratio on business incepting in 2005 was
meaningfully lower than that of business incepting in 2004,

¢ Premiums increased 3% to $67.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $66.1 million for the
year ended 2005,

* Added six additional licenses in 2006, bringing total to 43 states and the District of Columbia.
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+ Average percentage of gross medical stop-loss premiums written ceded from IHC to Indejendence
American increased to 22.2% during 2006 from 21.9% during 2005,

» Of the Company’s investment assets, approximately 94.3% was invested in investment grade fixe | income
securities, resale agreements, and cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006. Also at such da'e, 99.6%
of the Company's fixed maturities had the highest NAIC rating designation (NAIC ratings of 1 and 2
designation).

» In 2006, Independence American began writing medical stop-loss business and will, in 2007, w ite small
group major medical business pursuant to an agreement entered into in 2006 (see Note 5 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

» Agreed with a national, career agent marketing organization to begin marketing, in 2007, healtl. plans to
individuals and families utilizing Independence American as the carrier.

MGU Division (IndependenceCare, Marlton, RAS)

« [n 2006, the MGUs wrote an aggregate of $94.3 million of annualized gross premium which gene :ated pre-
tax income of $1.4 million, as compared to $101.3 million and $4.0 million in 20035, respectively. T 2e MGUs
wrote less premiums due, in part, to stricter underwriting guidelines and the continuing generzlly “soft”
market.

« In 2006, the MGUs generated revenues of $10.8 million, as compared to $14.4 million in 2005, a d :crease of
25%, due to lower volume of premium underwritten and lower profit commissions,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires
the Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the: financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. A summary of the C ompany’s
significant accounting policies and practices is provided in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8. Management has identified the accounting policies described below as "hose that,
due to the judgments, estimates and assumptions inherent in those policies, are critical to an understanc ing of the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and this Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Insurance Reserves

The Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss ; djustment
expenses, including legal and other fees, for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the erd of each
accounting period. These loss reserves are based on actuarial assumptions and are maintained at levels that are
estimated in accordance with GAAP. The Company’s estimate of loss reserves represenis managerient’s best
estimate of the Company’s liability at the balance sheet date.

All of the Company’s policies are short-duration and are accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the
amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims or open claims from prior periods, including losses i1icurred for
claims that have not been reported (“IBNR”). Short-duration contract loss estimates rely on actuarial olservations
of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events.

Management believes that the Company’s methods of estimating the tiabilities for insurance reservi:s provided
appropriate levels of reserves at December 31, 2006. Changes in the Company’s reserve estimates aie recorded
through a charge or credit to its earnings.

Medical Stop-Loss

The Company’s medical stop-loss business is comprised of employer stop-loss, HMO Reins irance and
Provider Excess. All of the Company’s medical stop-loss policies are short-duration and are accounted { or based on
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actuarial estimates of the amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims or open claims from prior periods,
including losses incurred for claims that have not been reported (“IBNR”). Short-duration contract loss estimates
rely on actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events.

The two “primary” or “key” assumptions underlying the calculation of loss reserves for medical stop-loss
business are (i) projected net loss ratio, and (i1) claim development patterns. The projected net loss ratio is set at
expected levels consistent with the underlying pricing assumptions {“Projected Net Loss Ratto”). Claim devel-
opment patterns are set quarterly as reserve estimates are developed and are based on recent claim development
history (“Claim Development Patterns™}. The Company uses the Projected Net Loss Ratio to establish reserves until
developing losses provide a better indication of ultimate results and it is feasible to set reserves based on Claim
Development Patterns. The Company has concluded that a reasonably likely change in the Projected Net Loss Ratio
assumption could have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity
(“Material Effect”) but a reasonably likely change in the Claim Development Pattern would not have a Material
Effect.

Projected Net Loss Ratio

Generally, during the first twelve months of an underwriting year, reserves for medical stop-loss are first set at
the Projected Net Loss Ratio, which is set using pricing assumptions developed using completed prior experience
trended forward. The Projected Net Loss Ratio is the Company’s best estimate of future performance until such time
as developing losses provide a better indication of ultimate results.

While the Company establishes a best estimate of the Projected Net Loss Ratio, actual experience may deviate
from this estimate. While the Company believes that larger variations are possible (as was the case with the 2004
and 2005 underwriting years which deviated by 12.5 and 7.1 Net Loss Ratio points, respectively), based on a review
of historical Net Loss Ratios experienced by the Company, the reasonably likely deviation from the expected Net
Loss Ratio is between three and five Net Loss Ratio points. Therefore, based on its experience to date, it is
reasonably likely that the actual experience will fall within a range up to five loss ratio points above or below the
expected pricing loss ratio. The impact of these reasonably likely changes at December 31, 2006, would be an
increase in net reserves (in the case of a higher ratio) or a decrease in net reserves (in the case of a lower ratio) of up
to approximately $1.2 million with a corresponding increase or decrease in the pre-tax expense for insurance
benefits, claims and reserves in the 2006 Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Major factors that affect the Projected Net Loss Ratio assumption in reserving for medical stop-loss relate to:
(i) frequency and severity of claims; (ii} changes in medical trend resulting from the influences of underlying cost
inflation, changes in utilization and demand for medical services, the impact of new medical technology and
changes in medical treatment protocols; and (iii) the adherence by the MGUs that produce and administer this
business to the Company’s underwriting guidelines. Changes in these underlying factors are what determine the
reasonably likely changes in the Projected Net Loss Ratio as discussed above.

Claim Development Patterns

Subsequent to the first twelve months of an underwriting year, the Company’s developing losses provide a
better indication of ultimate losses. At this peint, claims have developed to a level where Claim Development
Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim levels. Development factors
based on historical patterns are applied to paid and reported claims to estimate fully developed claims. Claim
Development Patterns are reviewed quarterly as reserve estimates are developed and are based on recent claim
development history. The Company must determine whether changes in development represent true indications of
emerging experience or are simply due to random claim fluctuations.

The Company also establishes its best estimates of claim development factors to be applied to more developed
treaty year experience. While these factors are based on historical Claim Development Patterns, actual claim
development may vary from these estimates. The Company does not believe that reasonably likely changes in its
actual claim development patterns would have a Material Effect.
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Predicting ultimate claims and estimating reserves in medical stop-loss is more complex than first do lar
medical and disability business due to the “excess of loss” nature of these products with very high deductit les
applying to specific claims on any individual claimant and in the aggregate for a given group. The level of thzse
deductibles makes it more difficult to predict the amount and payment pattern of such claims. Fluctuations in res ilts
for specific coverage are primarily due to the severity and frequency of individual claims, whereas fluctuation : in
aggregate coverage are largely attributable to frequency of underlying claims rather than severity. Liabilities for
first dollar medical reserves and disability coverages are computed using completion factors and expected oss
ratios derived from actual historical premium and claim data.

Due to the short-term nature of medical stop-loss, redundancies or deficiencies will typically emerge dwing
the course of the following year rather than over a number of years. For Employer Stop-Loss, as noted above, the
Company maintains its reserves based on underlying pricing assumptions until it determines that an adjustmer t is
appropriate based on emerging experience from its MGUs for prior underwriting years. Reserves for H.O
Reinsurance and Provider Excess are adjusted on a policy by policy basis. Because of the small number of H 10
Reinsurance and Provider Excess policies it writes, the Company is able to evaluate each policy individually for
potential liability by reviewing open claims with each HMO or provider group and applying completion fac ors
using historical data.

Fully 1nsured

Reserves for fully insured medical and dental business are established using historical claim developnent
patterns. Claim development by number of months elapsed from the incurred month is studied each month and
development factors are calculated. These claim development factors are then applied to the amount of claims Haid
to date for each incurred month to estimate fully complete claims. The difference between fully complete cli ims
and the claims paid to date is the estimated reserve. Total reserves are the sum of the reserves for all incu:red
months.

The primary assumption in the determination of fully insured reserves is that historical claim developrient
patterns are representative of future claim development patterns. Factors which may affect this assumption inc ude
changes in claim payment processing times and procedures, changes in time delay in submission of claims anc the
incidence of unusually large claims. The reserving analysis includes a review of claim processing statis ical
measures and large claim early notifications; the potential impact of any changes in these factors are minimal. The
time delay in submission of claims tends to be stable over time and not subject to significant volatility. The
Company does not believe that any reasonably likely change in these factors will have a Material Effect.

Premium and MGU Fee Income Revenue Recognition

Direct and assumed premiums from short-duration contracts are recognized as revenue over the period o’ the
contracts in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. The Company records MGU fee incon.c as
policy premium payments are earned. MGUs are compensated in two ways. They earn fee income based oi the
volume of business produced, and collect profit-sharing commissions if such business exceeds certain profitat ility
benchmarks. Profit-sharing commissions are accounted for beginning in the period in which the Company belizves
they are reasonably estimable, which is typically at the point that claims have developed to a level where Claim
Development Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim levels.

Reinsurance

Independence American is primarily a reinsurer, and currently derives most of its business from pro rata ¢ uota
share reinsurance treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life which are wholly ovned
subsidiaries of IHC. These treaties were entered into in 2002 and terminate on December 31, 2014, uiless
terminated sooner by Independence American. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life must cede at least
15% of their medical stop-loss business to Independence American under these treaties. Additionally, Star dard
Security Life, Madison National Life and Independence American have received regulatory approval to cede 1p to
30% to Independence American under most of THC’s medical stop-loss programs. For the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceded an average of 22.2% and
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21.9%, respectively, of their medical stop-loss business 1o Independence American. Commencing in July 2004,
Independence American began reinsuring 209 of Standard Security Life’s short-term statutory disability benefit
preduct (“DBL”) business. In 2005, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life began ceding 10% of the
majority of its fully insured business to Independence American.

[HC provides the Company with pro rata quota share reinsurance on business written by Independence
American. This business accounted for approximately 2% of the Company’s total earned premiums at December 31,
2006. Commencing in January 2004, Independence American began ceding 30% of its provider excess insurance to
Madison National Life. In January 2005, Independence American increased the amount ceded to Madison National
Life to 55%. This treaty was entered into on January 1, 2004 and will remain in force for an indefinite period, unless
terminated by either party as of any December 31, The Company is not aware of any regulatory or other restrictions
on the ability of IHC to fund its obligations under agreements in which THC reinsures such provider excess business.
Any such restrictions would at this point have a minimal impact on the Company. In addition, in 2006 Independence
American ceded 50% of its STM business to unrelated reinsurers.

Income Taxes

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Management believes that although
sufficient uncertainty exists regarding the future realization of deferred tax assets, the valuation allowance has been
adjusted to account for the expected utilization of net operating losses against future taxable income.

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes available to reduce future
income subject to income taxes. The net operating loss carryforwards expire between 2019 and 2025.

U.S. Federal and California tax laws impose substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating loss and
credit carryforwards in the event of an “ownership change” for tax purposes, as defined in Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. For tax purposes, an ownership change occurred during 1999 and, as a result, utilization of
the net operating losses arising prior to 1999 will be subject to an annual limitation in future years.

Investments

The Company accounts for its investments in debt and equity securities under SFAS No. 115 (“SFAS 115™),
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. The Company has classified all of its
investments as available-for-sale or trading securities. These investments are carried at fair value based on quoted
market prices with unrealized gains and losses reported in either accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets for available-for-sale securities or as unrealized gains or losses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for trading securities. The Company also had $4.0 million and $3.6 million, on average, in
trading accounts at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. All such trading securities were liquidated at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Net realized gains and losses on investments are computed using the specific
identification method and are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

Declines in value of securities available — for-sale that are judged to be other-than-temporary are determined
based on the specific identification method and are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Qperations as net
realized losses, The factors considered by management in determining when a decline is other than temporary
include but are not limited to: the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer; adverse changes in ratings announced by one or more
rating agencies; whether the issuer of a debt security has remained current on principal and interest payments;
whether the decline in fair value appears to be issuer specific or, alternatively, a reflection of general market or
industry conditions (including, in the case of fixed maturities, the effect of changes in market interest rates); and the
Company’s intent and ability to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value.
For securities within the scope of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 99-20), such as purchased interest-only
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securities, an impairment loss is recognized when there has been a decrease in expected cash flows combined with a
decline in the security’s fair value below cost.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, which consist of licenses, are not amortized but zre tested
for impairment, on a reporting unit basis, at the end of the third quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently if
indicators arise. The Company defines its reporting units on a segment basis.

The Company’s other intangible assets consisting of broker/third party relationships are amortized »ver five
years.

Discontinued Operatiens

The Company accrued estimates of expected liabilities related to discontinued operations through its eventual
discharge. The estimated remaining liabilities related to discontinued operations include contract tern inations,
litigation and loss from operations subsequent to September 30, 2002. The Company reviews the estimate 1 closure
costs liability on a quarterly basis to determine changes in the costs of the discontinued operations activ ties. The
cash flows used in discontinued operations are presented separately in the operating activities sectinm of the
statement of cash flows; there were no cash flows associated with investing and financing activities for the years
presented for discontinued operations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006, Compared to the Fiscal Ye:ir Ended
December 31, 2005

Premiums Earned

Premiums earned increased $1,659,000 (3% increase) to $67,777,000 for fiscal 2006, coripared to
$66,118,000 for fiscal 2005. The Company currently reinsures three lines of business from [HC. remiums
relating to medical stop-loss business were $56,179,000 and $57,732,000 for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005,
respectively. The decline is due to a decrease in gross medical stop-loss premiums written by THC i:s a result
of stricter underwriting guidelines. Premiums relating to DBL were $3,913,000 and $4.,187,000 for fisca 2006 and
fiscal 2003, respectively. The decline is due to a decrease in DBL premiums produced by IHC as a esult of a
reduction in premium rates. Premiums relating to group major medical and STM were $7,685,000 and 14,199,000
for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively. Independence American began reinsuring 10% of IHC’s group medical
business effective January 1, 2005 and 10% of IHC’s STM in the second half of 2005. The increase i¢ due to an
increase in production of these lines at [HC and the lack of STM premiums in the first half of fiscal 2005.

MGU Fee Income

MGU fee income decreased $3,800,000 to $10,356,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to $14,156,00) for fiscal
2005. MGU fee income-administration decreased $2,046,000 to $10,238,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to
$12,284,000 for fiscal 2005, as the MGUs have decreased their volume of business as a result of stricter
underwriting guidelines. MGU fee income-profit commission decreased $1,754,000 to $118,000 for fiscal
2006, compared to $1,872,000 for fiscal 2005, Profit commissions for a given year are based primarily on the
performance of business written during portions of the three preceding years. Therefore, profit comn issions for
2006 are based on business written during portions of 2003, 2004 and 2005. Since certain of the MGUs e xperienced
higher loss ratios on those years, profit commissions for 2007 and future fiscal years will continue to b adversely
affected.
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Net Investment Income

Net investment income increased $766,000 to $3,267,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to $2,501,000 for fiscal
2005 due to higher yields and an increase in invested assets. The return on investments of the Company was 5.4%
for fiscal 2006 and 4.76% for the comparable period in 2005.

Net Realized Investment Gains

Net realized investment gains decreased $179,000 to $66,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to $245,000 for fiscal
2005, The Company’s decision as to whether to sell securities is based on management’s ongoing evaluation of
investment opportunities and economic market conditions, thus creating fluctuations in realized gains or losses
from period to period. Included in fiscal 2006 is an unrealized loss of $96,000 representing an increase in the value
of the derivative liability relating to the agreement with EDH (see Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statemenits). For fiscal 2006 and 2005, there were no unrealized losses on securities that the Company deemed to be
other than temporary in nature. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

Insurance Benefits, Claims and Reserves

Insurance benefits claims and reserves increased $3,077,000 to $47,799,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to
$44,722,000 for fiscal 2005, an increase of 7%. The increase is mainly the result of a Net Loss Ratio of 100.5% for
fiscal 2006 versus 97.1% for fiscal 2003 on its medical stop-loss business. The increase in the net loss ratio is
primarily related to further development of business incepting in 2005 and 2004, In addition, there was an increase
in the volume of group major medical and STM premium assumed from THC. The increase of $3,077,000 for fiscal
2006 is comprised of a $1,153,000 increase in medical stop-loss expense, a 1,881,000 increase in group major
medical and STM expense, and an increase of $43,000 relating to DBI. expense. Insurance benefits, ctaims and
reserves for 2006 includes a charge of $1,969,000 to reflect loss development it its medical stop-loss business from
prior years. While management sets reserves based on its best estimate of ultimate claim settlement cost, the
Company adjusts reserves as claims mature, approach settlement or are otherwise resolved.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $925,000 to $30,267,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to
$31,192,000 for fiscal 2005. This decrease is primarily due to lower commission expense of $780,000 incurred by
Independence American resulting from a decrease in profit commissions due to non-owned MGUs resulting from
higher loss ratios on certain treaties.

Amortization and Depreciation

Amortization and depreciation expense decreased $411,000 to $689,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to
$1,100,000 for fiscal 2005. The expense mainly relates to the amortization of the intangible assets for the value
of broker/TPA relationships of the MGUs. These assets were part of the purchase price adjustments for the
acquisition of IAHC, Mariton, and IndependenceCare-MidAtlantic. Amortization expense for these intangible
assets wilt decline over the useful lives of the assets,

Minority Interest

The Company recorded $262,000 for fiscal 2006 and $544,000 for fiscal 2005 of expense related to the 20%
minority interest in Marlton. This reduction is due to lower income earned by Marlton.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes increased $840,000 to $960,000, an effective rate of 38.9%, for fiscal 2006,
compared to $120,000 an effective rate of 2. 1%, for fiscal 2005. Net income for fiscal 2006 and 2005 includes a non-
cash provision for federal income taxes of $778,000 and $1,785,000 respectively. The effective rate of 38.9% for
fiscal 2006 represents a combination of state and federal tax expense. In 2003, the Company further reduced the
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valuation allowance by $2,079,000 relating to the deferred tax asset, which caused a corresponding increase in such
deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance relates to the probability that AMIC might not be able to fully wilize its
prior tax year federal net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”). AMIC reviews the valuation allowance q 1arterly
to determine the reasonableness of the amount, and previously reduced it in connection with the Coripany’s
acquisitions in 2002, 2003 and 2004. Based upon AMIC’s profitability in 2005 and projected continuing pr fitable
results, it was management’s view that it was appropriate to further reduce the valuation allowance in th: fourth
quarter of 2005 which resulted in an increase in net income and income from continuing operations. There was no
such adjustment in 2004 or 2006. For as long as AMIC utilizes its net operating loss carryforwards, it will not pay
any income taxes, except for federal alternative mininum taxes and state income taxes.

Gain/Loss on Discontinued Operations

Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax was $54,000 for fiscal 2006, compared to $59,000 for fiscal 2005.
The loss in both years was primarily the result of the re-estimation of lease costs related to the Co npany’s
discontinued Intellicom operation.

Net Income

The Company had net income of $1,454,000, or $.17 per share, diluted, for fiscal 2006, com rared to
$5,460,000, or $.64 per share, diluted, for fiscal 2005,

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared to the Fiscal Yea * Ended
December 31, 2004

Premiums Earned

Premiums earned increased $5.915,000 to $66,118,000 for fiscal 2003, compared to $60,203,000 or fiscal
2004, an increase of 10%. The Company currently reinsures three lines of business from Independence Holding
Company (“IHC™). Total premiums relating to medical stop-loss were $57,732,000 and $57,998,000 for he fiscal
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Premiums relating to DBL were $4,187 000 and
$2,205,000 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Independence American began reinsuring 20% of IH'>’s DBL
business effective July 1, 2004. Premiums relating to small group major medical were $4,199,000 a1 d $0 for
2005 and 2004, respectively. Independence American began reinsuring 10% of IHC's small group medical business
effective January 1, 2005. Independence American generated $180,000 of STM premiums in 2005, whic 1 was the
first year in which it wrote such business.

MGU Fee Income

The Company earned $14,156,000 of fee income from its MGUs for fiscal 2005 as compared to $1'7,597,000
for fiscal 2004, a decrease of $3,441,000. The reduction in fee income is due to lower volume of premiur i1s written
and lower profit commissions. Inctuded in fee income is $1,872,000 and $2,749,000 of MGU profit commn issions in
2005 and 2004, respectively. Profit commissions for a given year are based primarily on the performance of business
written during portions of the two preceding years. Therefore, profit commissions for 2006 will be based on
business written during portions of 2004 and 2005. Since certain of the MGUs experienced higher los; ratios in
those years, profit commissions for the 2006 fiscal year and future years may be adversely affected.

Net Investment Income

Net investment income increased $210,000 to $2,501,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to $2,291,00( for fiscal
2004, due to a higher invested asset base in 2005, partially offset by a slightly lower return on investrients. The
return on investments of the Company was 4.76% in fiscal 2005 and 5.15% in fiscal 2004.

Net Realized Investment Gains

Net realized investment gains increased $23,000 to $245,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to $222,00) for fiscal
2004. The Company’s decision as to whether to sell securities is based on cash flow needs, investment opj ortunities,
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and economic market conditions, thus creating fluctuations in realized gains or losses from period to period. See
Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Insurance Benefits, Claims and Reserves

Insurance benefits, claims and reserves amounted to $44,722,000 for fiscal 2005 as compared to $39,173,000
for fiscal 2004, an increase of $5,549,000 or 14%. The increase is mainly due to additional claims relating to
increased earned premium volume from Independence American in 2005. Additionally, 2005 was negatively
impacted by higher than expected claims from certain of Independence American’s 2004 and 2005 medical stop-
loss programs. The Company recorded an overall Net Loss Ratio of 95.1% in 2005 versus 90.9% in 2004. Insurance
benefits, claims and reserves for 2005 includes a charge of $305,000 to reflect loss development from prior treaty
years and a corresponding increase in reserves for the current treaty year. While management sets reserves based on
its best estimate of ultimate claim settlement cost, the Company adjusts reserves as claims mature, approach
settlement or are otherwise resolved.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general, and administrative expenses increased $1,564,000 to 31,192,000 for fiscal 2005, compared
to $29,628.,000 for fiscal 2004, The increase is primarily due to commission expense recorded by Independence
American, Commission expense for Independence American increased $1,801,000 10 $19,954,000 for fiscal 2005,
compared to $18,153,000 for fiscal 2004,

Amortization and Depreciation

Amortization and depreciation expense decreased $566,000 to $1,100,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to
$1,666,000 for fiscal 2004, The expense primarily relates to the amortization of the intangible assets for the value of
broker/TPA relationships of the MGUSs. These intangible assets were acquired as part of acquisitions made by the
Company. Amortization expense for these intangible assets will decline ¢ver the useful lives of the assets.

Restructuring Expense

The Company recognized no restructuring expense for fiscal 2005 and no related expense for fiscal 2004. The
Company reversed the remaining reserve of $67,000 related to the restructuring during fiscal 2005. At December 31,
2005 and December 31, 2004, a restruciuring accrual of $0 and $300,000, respectively, remained outstanding.

Minority Interest

The Company recorded $544,000 for fiscal 2005 and $678,000 for fiscal 2004 of expense related to the 20%
minority interest in Marlton, This reduction is due to lower income earned by Marlton.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense was $120,000 for fiscal 2005 as compared to a tax expense of $3,569,000 for fiscal
2004, a decrease of $3,449,000. In 2005, the Company further reduced the valuation allowance by $2,079,000
relating to the deferred tax asset, which caused a corresponding increase in such deferred tax asset. The valuation
allowance relates to the probability that AMIC might not be able to fully utilize its prior tax year federal net
operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs™). AMIC reviews the valuation allowance quarterly to determine the
reasonableness of the amount, and previously reduced it in connection with the Company’s acquisitions in
2002, 2003 and 2004. Based upon AMIC’s profitability in 2005 and projected continuing profitable results, it was
management’s view that it was appropriate to further reduce the valuation allowance in the fourth quarter of 2005
which resulted in an increase in net income and income from continuing operations. There was no such adjustment
in 2004.
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Gain/Loss on Discontinued Operations

Loss on discontinued operations was $59,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to a gain of $240,000 for fiscal 2004, a
decrease of $299,000. The ioss in 2005 is primarily due to the re-estimation of lease expenses related to Intel icom, a
discontinued operation. The gain in 2004 is primarily attributable to lower than expected expenses re ated to
Intellicom, MTC, ISP Channel and KCI.

Net Income

The Company had net income of $5,460,000, or $.64 per share diluted, for fiscal 2005, compared to net ncome
of $5,904,000, or $.69 per share diluted, for fiscal year 2004.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Independence American

Independence American principally derives cash flow from: (i) operations; (ii) the receipt of sch:duled
principal payments on its portfolio of fixed income securities; and (ili) earnings on investments. Such cash :low is
partially used to finance liabilities for insurance policy benefits and reinsurance obligations.

Independence American maintains a revolving Letter of Credit (“LOC”) with a financial institution to s ipport
reinsurance obligations of Independence American in the ordinary course of business. The [.OC has an outst: nding
face amount up to $5,000,000 although Independence American has not drawn upon funds to date. The LOCr :news
October 15 of each year, unless cancelled by Independence American.

Corporate

Corporate derives cash flow funds principally from: dividends and tax payments from its subsidiaries and
investment income from corporate liquidity. There are no regulatory constraints on the MGUS’ ability to dividi nd 1o
the parent company, however, state insurance laws have provisions relating to the ability of the parent comp: ny to
use cash generated by Independence American. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, the MGUs have
paid $4,060,000 in dividends to Corporate.

Cash Flows

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $39,155,000 of cash, cash equivalents, and investments ret of
amounts due to/from brokers compared with $55,720,000 as of December 31, 2005.

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1006
was $6,565,000. Net cash flows were the result of insurance revenues and fees from MGUSs, partially offsct by
higher than expected claims and losses.

Nel cash used by investing activities of continuing operations for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 was
$11,546,000. This results from purchases of fixed maturities, equity securities, and short-term investments, n:t of
sales of all such securities. Also, in February 2006, Independence American entered into an agreement to v rite
group major medical and medical stop-loss insurance pursuant to which $2,500,000 was paid to EDH (see Note 5 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Net cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 was $52,000, resul ing
from the exercise of common stock options.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had $17,646,000 of restricted cash at the MGUs. The amount at the
MGUs is directly offset by corresponding liabilities for Premium and Claim Funds Payable of $17,646,000. This
asset, in part, represents the premium that is remitted by the insureds and is collected by the MGUs on behalf of the
insurance carriers they represent. Each month the premium is remitted to the insurance carriers by the MGUs, Uatil
such remittance is made the collected premium is carried as an asset on the balance sheet of each MGU with a
corresponding payable to each insurance carrier. In addition to the premium being held at the MGUs, the MGUs are
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in possession of cash to pay claims “Claim Funds”. The cash is deposited by each insurance carrier into a bank
account that the MGU s can access. The cash is used by the MGUs to pay claims on behalf of the insurance carriers
they represent. The availability of cash enables the MGUs to reimburse claims in a timely manner.

The Company has $22.5 million of insurance reserves that it expects to pay out of current assets and cash flows
from future business. If necessary, the Company could sell its fixed maturity investments if the timing of claim
payments associated with our insurance resources does not coincide with future cash flows.

The Company believes it has sufficient cash to meet its currently anticipated business requirements over the
next twelve months including the funding of discontinued operations, working capital requirements, and capital
investments. The Company expects continued cash usage for its discontinued operations, which are primarily lease
obligations, for the year ending December 31, 2007.

Asset Quality

The nature and quality of insurance company investments must comply with all applicable insurance statutes
and regulations which have been promulgated primarily for the protection of policyholders. Of the aggregate
carrying value of the Company’s investment assets, approximately 94.3% was invested in investment grade fixed
income securities, resale agreements, and cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006. Also at such date, 99.6%
of the Company’s fixed maturities were investment grade. These investments carry less default risk and, therefore,
lower interest rates than other types of fixed maturity investments. At December 31, 2006, 0.4% of the carrying
value of fixed maturities was invested in diversified non-investment grade fixed income securities. Investments in
such securities have different risks than investment grade securities, including greater risk of loss upon default, and
thinner trading markets. The Company does not have any non-performing fixed maturities.

The composition of the Company’s fixed maturities at December 31, 2006, utilizing Standard and Poor’s rating
categories, was as follows:

Grade % Tnvested
A A A e e e e e 51.8%
A e 8.4%
A e e e e 19.8%
BB B . . e e 19.6%
BB or lower. . . . e _0.4%

100%

Investment Impairments

The Company reviews its investments regularly and monitors its investments continually for impairments. For
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had no realized losses for other than temporary
impairments. The Company's gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities totaled $1,172,000 and $1,017,000 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively. Substantiaily all of these securities were investment grade. The
unrealized losses have been evaluated in accordance with the Company’s policy and were determined to be
temporary in nature at December 31, 2006. The Company holds all fixed maturities as available-for-sale and
accordingly marks all of its securities to market through accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Balance Sheet

Total investments increased $8,734,000 to $57.215,000 at December 31, 2006 from $48,481,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 2005, due to net income. The $1,614,000 increase in total stockholders’ equity is primarily due to net income
of $1,454,000 generated during fiscal 2006.

The Company had receivables from reinsurers of $12,249,000 at December 31, 2006, Substantially all of the
business ceded to such reinsurers is of short duration. All of such receivables are either due from related parties,
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highly rated companies or are adequately secured. No allowance for doubtful accounts was deemed necess: ry at
December 31, 2006.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Due to its strong capital ratio and excellent asset quality and credit-worthiness, the Company remain ; well
positioned to increase or diversify its current activities. It is anticipated that future acquisitions or other expans ion of
operations will be funded internally from existing capital and surplus and parent company liquidity. In the event
additional funds are required, it is expected that they would be borrowed or raised in the public or private « apital
markets to the extent determined to be necessary or desirable.

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, the Company may carry its portfolio of fixed income securities ei her as
held to maturity (carried at amortized cost), as trading securities (carried at fair value) or as available-fr-sale
(carried at fair value). The Company has chosen to carry its debt securities as available-for-sale. The Co npany
experienced a change in net unrealized loss of $127,000 reflecting a net unrealized loss of $1,191,)00 at
December 31, 2006 from a net unrealized loss of $1,064,000 at December 31, 2005. From time to tine, as
warranted, the Company employs investment strategies to mitigate interest rate and other market exposu ‘es.

The Company enters into a variety of contractual obligations with third-parties in the ordinary cours: of its
operations. These obligations, as of December 31, 2006, are set forth in the table below. However, we do not selieve
that our cash flow requirements can be fully assessed based upon an analysis of these obligations. Future cash
outflows, whether they are contractual obligations or not, also will vary based upon our future needs. A though
some outflows are fixed, others depend on future events. The Company has expected contractual obl: gations
relating to non-cancelable leases and insurance reserves of the following at December 31, 2006 (in thot sands):

Operating Insura ice

Year Ending December 31, Lease Reser es
00T . e e e $ 554 $22,504
2008 . . e e e e 516 —
2009 . e e e e s 324 —
200 . e e e e e 220 —
720 [ 116 —
2012 and thereafter . ... ... ... . 1 —

Ol . o v e e e e e e e e e $1,849 $22,504

Under certain circumstances set forth in the Limited Liability Company Agreements of Marlton and vajestic,
the Company has the right and/or obligation to purchase some or all of the minority interests in Ma 1ton and
Majestic.

OUTLOOK

Independence American

Independence American, which is domiciled in Delaware, is licensed to write property and/o- casualty
insurance in 43 states and the District of Columbia, and has a B++ (Good) rating from A.M. Best Com:pany, Inc.
(“A.M. Best”). An A.M. Best rating is assigned after an extensive quantitative and qualitative evalu ation of a
company’s financial condition and operating performance, and is also based upon factors relevant to poli :yholders,
agents, and intermediaries, and is not directed towards protection of investors. A.M., Best rating § are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities of the Company.

Independence American is primarily a reinsurer, and currently derives most of its business from prc rata quota
share medical stop-loss reinsurance treaties (the “IHC Treaties™) with Standard Security Life and Madisc n National
Life, which are wholly owned subsidiaries of Independence Holding Company (“IHC”). IHC owns 8% of the
Company’s common stock. The IHC Treaties were entered into in 2002 and terminate on Decembe: 31, 2014,
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unless terminated sooner by Independence American. There are three factors that determine the amount of
premiums assumed by Independence American: (i) the percentage of business ceded to Independence American
pursuant to the IHC Treaties or otherwise; (ii) the amount of gross premiurm produced by the MGU Subsidiaries and
other distribution sources written by Standard Security Life or Madison National Life that is ceded to Independence
American under the IHC Treaties; and (iii) the amount of gross premium praduced by the MGU Subsidiaries and
other distribution sources written by carriers other than Standard Security Life or Madison National Life that is
ceded to Independence American.

THC Treaties

With respect to the IHC Treaties, the Company’s operating results are affected by the following factors: (i) the
percentage of business ceded to Independence American pursuant to the IHC Treaties; (i) the amount of gross
premium written by Standard Security Life and Madison National Life that can be ceded pursuant to the IHC
Treaties; and (iii) the profitability of the business ceded.

Percentage of Business Ceded

With respect to medical stop-loss, IHC has agreed to cede a minimum of 15% of its medical stop-loss business
to Independence American, and IHC has increased this percentage each year since inception of the IHC Treaties.
Standard Security Life, Madison National Life and Independence American have received regulatory approval for
Standard Security Life and Madison National Life to cede up to 30% to Independence American under most of
THC’s medical stop-loss programs. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 and December 30, 2005,
Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceded an average of 22.2% and 21.9%, respectively, of their
gross medical stop-loss premiums written to Independence American. This increase in ceding percentage was offset
by a decrease in gross medical stop-loss premiums written by THC (including business written by the MGU
Subsidiaries and otherwise) resulting in a small decrease in premiums earned by Independence American. In 2006
and beyond, any increase in the percentage of medical stop-loss ceded 1o Independence American will depend on
how much IHC determines it has available to reinsure and Independence American’s desire to increase the
percentage. Since the percentage being ceded is now well in excess of the contractual minimum, there is no guaranty
that IHC will continue to increase the percentage of business ceded to Independence American or, in fact, cede in
excess of 15%. However, the AMIC MGUs are the largest producers of medical stop-loss business for IHC,
controlling a majority of this premium in 2006.

Commencing in July 2004, Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-
term statutory disability benefit product (“DBL”). Standard Security Life is not contractually obligated to continue
to cede this business to Independence American after termination of the current treaty year. In 2005, Standard
Security Life and Madison Nationat Life began ceding 10% of the majority of its fully insured business to
Independence American. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life are not contractually obligated to
continue to cede this business to Independence American after termination of the current treaty years. The Company
does not expect the percentage ceded to it from IHC will change significantly in the next twelve months

Upon renewal of each of the programs underlying the IHC Treaties, Standard Security Life and Madison
National Life determine the maximum percentage of risk to be offered to Independence American and Indepen-
dence American determines the percentage that it wishes to accept. A typical pro rata quota share reinsurance treaty
is for a twelve month period in which the ceding company and the reinsurer share the premiums as well as the losses
and expenses in an agreed proportion for all policies written with an effective date within this period. Most treaties
run from January 1 to December 31, but others could begin and end in other periods. Therefore the percentage ceded
could change as the year progresses. If Independence American, Standard Security Life, and Madison National Life
had agreed to increase the average percentage ceded to Independence American by 1% (from the 22.2% ceded for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2006) and Standard Security Life’s and Madison National Life’s gross
written premium had remained unchanged, Independence American’s premium would have increased by approx-
imately $2.1 million, which is approximately 3.1% of total net premiums earned for the year ended December 31,
2006. That increase in premium, however, would not have flowed directly to pre-tax operating income because of
corresponding changes in insurance benefits, claims and reserves and other expenses attributable to the increase in
premiums.
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Amount of Gross Premiums Written

The gross medical stop-loss premiums written by IHC decreased in 2006 by 4.6% and such promiums
praduced by the AMIC MGUs decreased by 3.5% in 2006, as a result of writing and/or renewing fewer polir ies due
to competitors’ willingness to write business at profit margins lower than those acceptable to the Company,  artially
offset by increased rates on the policies retained. This resulted in a decrease in the gross amount of p.emium
available to be ceded to Independence American. The AMIC MGUs do not anticipate materially increasing their
production of medical stop-loss business in 2007. THC has reported that it expects its gross DBL premiuns to be
relatively stable in 2006, however, it expects meaningful growth in its STM and CDHP premiums in 20 )7,

Profitability

The medical stop-loss market is generally cyclical in nature. When a product expertences several cons scutive
vears of underwriting profitability, it is not unusual for there to be more competitors entering that line which can
increase presstre on pricing and create a “softer” market. The medical stop-loss market began to “soften” n 2003
and less favorable conditions continued through 2004, 2005 and 2006. As a result of these market conditions, the
rate that the carriers that cede business to the Company were able to charge for medical stop-loss increazed at a
lesser rate in recent years, however, increases in medical trend have also been held in check to a greater ext:nt and
deductibles and attachment points have increased. This reduces the risk taker’s overall risk exposure. Despi e these
market conditions, the Company produced significantly profitable results in 2003 and 2004, marginally profitable
results in 2005 and 2006, and expects improved profitability in 2007. Based on currently available infor.nation,
business incepting in 20086, of which a material portion will be earned and recorded in 2007, is projected to achieve a
net loss ratio that is meaningfully lower than that of business incepting in 2005, just as the net loss ratio on b 1siness
incepting in 2005 was meaningfully lower than that of business incepting in 2004, Fully insured business, in :luding
the STM and CDHP lines, tends to be less volatile and less cyclical than excess insurance.

Therefore, the impact on the Company's operating results retating to the IHC Treaties can be summarized as
follows: (i) assuming continuing profitability of the underlying business, the Company’s results would be positively
impacted if [HC were to cede a higher percentage and adversely affected if IHC were to cede less; (i) Indepe adence
American’s income would be negatively impacted if IHC’s gross premium written were to decreare, and
(iii) Independence American’s income in future years would be positively affected if IHC were to produce higher
profit margins, and negatively itmpacted if loss ratios increase.

Marketing Agreements

In February 2006, Independence American entered into an agreement with a marketing organization with a
growing block of fully insured health business, including CDHPs, primarily sold to small employer grou s, and
medical stop-loss, to begin writing for Independence American. The organization that produces this busines: began
writing employer medical stop-loss through Independence American in 2006, and will move the majorit s of its
existing block of fully insured and stop-loss health insurance (currently approximately $29 million) to Indepen-
dence American during 2007. This block, which is expected to have meaningful growth, has averaged 8% ris : profit
over the past five years, although there is no guaranty that such results will be maintained. Independence Anierican
will be the exclusive issuing carrier for business underwritten by this organization through December 31 2011.
Subject to certain conditions, the agreement will automatically extend until December 31, 2016, and this
organization could be entitled to additional cash consideration (see Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Fi iancial
Statements).

In addition, the Company has entered into an agreement with a national, career agent marketing organiz: tion to
begin marketing health plans to individuals and families utilizing Independence American as the carrier. The
agency projects that it will have $10 million of annualized premiums ($6 million on an earned ba:is) on
Independence American paper as of December 31, 2007. Independence American initially anticipates re aining
50% of the risk on this business. The program will be administered by Insurers Administrative Corpor: tion, a
wholly owned subsidiary of IHC. These amounts are less than what was initially disclosed due to a lat:r than
anticipated launch date as a result of product design changes and filing requirements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Risk Management

The Company manages interest rate risk by seeking to maintain an investment portfolio with a duration and
average life that falls within the band of the duration and average life of the applicable liabilities. Options may be
utilized to modify the duration and average life of such assets.

The following summarizes the estimated pre-tax change in fair vatue (based upon hypothetical parallel shifts in
the U.S. Treasury yield curve) of the fixed income portfolio assuming immediate changes in interest rates at
specified levels at December 31, 2006:

Estimated
Estimated Change In
Change in Interest Rates Fair Value  Fair Value
(In thousands)
200 basis POINt TISE . . .. ittt e e e e e $38,314 $(4,386)
100 basis POINt FISE . . . ..ttt e e e e 40,503 (2,197)
Base sCenamo. . .. .. e e e e 42,700 —
100 basis point declinge. . . ... .. . it e 44,831 2,131
200 basis point decline. . ... ... ... e 46,960 4,260

The Company monitors its investment pertfolio on a continuous basis and believes that the liquidity of the
Company will not be adversely affected by its current investments,

In the Company’s analysis of the asset-liability model, a 100 to 200 basis point change in interest rates on the
Company’s liabilities would not be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company. With respect to its
investments, the Company employs (from time to time as warranted) investment strategies to mitigate interest rate
and other market exposures.

37




Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting . . . ............. .. .. 0.0,
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. . . ... ... ... .. vt
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. .. ...............
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 . . . . ..

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
). S P

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 . . . ..
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ... ... oo it iin ettt e e iiaea s anas

38



Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Beard of Directors and Stockholders
American Independence Corp.

The management of American Independence Corp. (“AMIC”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal contrel over financial reporting. AMIC’s internal control system was designed to provide
reascnable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of AMIC’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on
our assessment we concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, AMIC’s internal control over financial reporting is
effective,

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements in this
Annual Report, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of,
AMIC’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, which is included herein on page 40.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
American Independence Corp.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Report of Management cn
Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting”, that American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company’ )
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria establishe d
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of tle
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective intern.l
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financil
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abo 1t
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our aucit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performir g
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes n
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reportii.g
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable deta l,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonat le
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordan e
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being male
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonatle
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the compan} ’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk it at
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with tie
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinicn, management’s assessment that American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries maintain :d
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respec:s,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsorig
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, American Independence Corp. axd
subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo: rd
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated March .5,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/si KPMG LLP

New York, New York
March 15, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockhelders
American Independence Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of American Independence Corp. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders” equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2006. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the financial
statement schedules listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Comipany Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQY), and our report dated
March 15, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of,
internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ KPMG LLP

New York, New York
March 15, 2007
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS:
Investments:
Short-term investments, at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. . ........... ..
Securities purchased under agreements toresell ... ... .. ... ... al
Fixed maturities available-for-sale, at fairvalue . . ... ........ ... ... ... . .. .0,
Equity securities available-for-sale, at fairvalue . . ......... ... . ... .
Other long-term InVestMENtS . . . .. .. .. .o it e

Total INVESHMENTS . . o oottt et e et e e e
Cashand cashequivalents . . ... ... ... . . i
Restricted cash ($15,419 and $15,643, respectively, restricted by related parties). . .. ......
Accrued MVESIMENT IMCOME . . . . o oot ettt e et e e
Premiums receivable ($1,787 and $2,203, respectively, due from related parties). ... ......
Net deferred 1aX a8Sel . . . . .. ittt e
Due from reinsurers ($11,003 and $10,696, respectively, due from related parties). . .......
Goodwill . . . . e e e e e
Intangible assets. . .. ... .. e
Accrued fee income ($239 and $370, respectively, due from related parties) . .. ..........
Other assets (310 and $11, respectively, due from related parties) . .. .................

TOTAL ASSETS .o i e i e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
LIABILITIES:
Insurance reserves ($19,241 and $17,897, respectively, due to related parties) . ...........
Premium and claim funds payable ($15,419 and $15,643, respectively, due to related
02T 11 R
Derivative liability .. ... ... e
Commission payable ($1,245 and $1,898, tespectively, due to related parties). . ..........
Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities . .. ... ... ... ..o oo
State income taxes payable . .. ... e
Due to reinsurers (31,914 and $1,304 respectively, due to related parties). . . ............
Net liabilities associated with discontinued operations . ............ ... ... .. ve...

Total Habilities . . . .. . o oot i e
MIROTILY IBETESE . o .. o oottt b

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Preferred stock, $0.10 par value, 1,000 shares designated no shares issued and outstanding . .

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 15,000,000 shares authorized; 9,180,695 shares issued;
8,457,890 and 8,451,223 shares outstanding, respectively .. ........... ... o

Additional paid-in capital . ... ... L L

Accumulated other comprehensive foss. .. ... ... L

Treasury stock, at cost, 722,805 shares and 729,472 shares, respectively................

Accumulated defiCIt . ..ot e e
TOTAL STOCKHOLDER’SEQUITY . .. ... ... ... . i

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY. . ...................
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2006 _ 2005
(In thousands, except
share da a)

§ 4649 1 1979

0,676 3,092
42,700 40,444
2,181 1,884
1,009 1,082
57,215 48,481
1,940 1,176
17,646 16,296
455 533
2,127 2,389
12,973 13,751
12,249 11,707
24,154 24,154
3,542 726
1,015 2,833
1,444 1,686

$ 134,760 $ 129,732
$ 22504 % 20,382
17,646 16,296
839 —
1,614 2,599
2,231 2,096
347 251
1,914 1,304
555 808
47,650 44,236
4,026 4,026
92 92
479,399 479,192
(1,191) (1,064)
(8,650) (8,730y
(386,566) (388,020}
83,0684 81,470
$ 134760 $ 129,732




American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

REVENUES:

Premiums earned ($56,854, $55,655 and $50,031, respectively, from
related parties) ... .. .. . L e e,

MGU fee income (37,793, $10,568 and $12,772 respectively, from related
AN S ) . . e

Net INVESLMENE INCOIMIE . . . .\ ottt et e e e e e e et et e e
Net realized investment ZainNs . . . ... ... ot vt i inrar e
Other iNCOME . . . .. . e e e e e e e e e e e

EXPENSES

Insurance benefits, claims and reserves ($39,611, $38,322 and $32,116,
respectively, from related parties) .. .. ... ... ..., L.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (317,004, $17,090 and
$15,785, respectively, from related parties) . .....................

Amortization and depreciation . .. ..... ... .. .. e
Restructuring (benefit) expense . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... o
Minority fnterest. . . ... e e

Income from continuing operations before income tax. .. ...............
Provision forincome taxes . .. .. ... . ... L e

Income from continuing OPerationsS. . . . .. ... ...ttt ne et
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of tax ..........

Netincome .. ... ... . .. . e
Basic income per common share:

Income from continuing OPErations . . . .. .. ...t v it
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of tax. ... ... ..

Net income applicable to common shares .. .......................
Shares used to compute basic income pershare. .. ... ... .. ... .. ...

Diluted income per common share:
Income from continuing operations . . .. ........ ... .. . i
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of tax. . . . ... ..

Net income applicable to common shares . ........... ... .........

Shares used to compute diluted income pershare .. ........ ... ... ...

Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

(In thousands, except per share data)

$67,777  $66,118  $60,203
10356 14,156 17,597
3267 2,501 2,291
66 245 222
19 10 65
81485 83,130 80,378
47799 44722 39,173
30,267 31,192 29,628
689 1,100 1,666
— 67) —
262 544 678
79017 77491 71,145
2,468 5639 9233
960 120 3.569
1,508 5519 5664
(54) (59) 240
$ 1454 $ 5460 $ 5904
$ U8 $ 65 % 67
(01) (01) 03
$ 17 $ 64 $ .70
8452 8447 8434
$ 18 $ 65 $ .66
(01} 01 03
$ 17 $ 64 $ .69
8506 8526 8535

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
L AT T2 ] 5 1=

Adjustments to net income:

Net realized investment gains. . ........ ... . .. iiiiiaiaaa,
{Gain) loss on disposal of discontinued operations .....................
Restructuring (benefit) expense .. ... ... ... ... .. . . i
Amortization and depreciation . . ... .. ... ... L o
Equity inCOME . . .. .. e e e
Deferred tax expense (benefit) . ... ... ... ... . ... o,
Non-cash stock compensation €Xpense . . ... .. ..o e e
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Net sales of trading securities. .. ... ... ... . ... i
Change in policy liabilities .. ... ... ... .. it
Change in net amounts due from and to reinsurers .. ...................
Change in accrued fee income . . ... .. .. i
Change in premiums receivable . . ... ... ... ... .. . . . i
Change N iNCOME AXES . . . . . o v vt i it e e
Change in other assets and other labilities . . .. .......................

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities of continuing operations. . . .
Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities of discontinued operations . .

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities. .. ... .............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Net (purchases) sales of short-term investments . ......... ... .. ........
Net (purchases) sales of securities under resale and repurchase agreements . . .
Change in amounts due to and from brokers. . . ..... ... ... ool
Sales of and principal repayments on fixed maturities . . .. ............ ...
Maturities of fixed maturities . . .. ... .. ... L. e
Purchases of fixed maturities . .. ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..
Sales of equity SeCUrities . . . . . ... e
Purchases of equity securities. . .. ......... ... . i
Distribution from interest in partnerships .. ...... ... ... . ... ... ... ..
Employers Direct Health {“EDH”) agency agreement . . .................
Acquisitions of companies, net. .. ...... ... .. L i i

Net cash provided by (used by) investing activities .. .................

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ... ... ... ... . .0
Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities. . . ................ ..
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ........... ... ... ......

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period .. . ... ... ... ... ... ... ...
Cash and cash equivalents, atend of period . ... . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ...

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during period for:

T o34 T30 1 (1~

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

$ 1454 %5 5460 § 5904

{66) (245) (222)
54 59 (240)
— (67) —

689 1,100 1,666

(102) (26) (37)

869 (203) 3,065

235 227 456

392 248 249
1,622 (1,358)  3.605
68 3,093  (5540)
1,818 495  (236)
262 (82)  (884)
8 71y (129)
(738) 476 790

6,565  9,i06 8447
(307) (187) (192)

6,258 8919 8,255

(2659 1982  (819)
(3,584) 1,282 (1,649)

—  (206) 86
12,793 30920 81,795
300 200

(15,784) (38,424) (85,147)
1,685 720 2225
(1,973) (1,617) (1,858)
176 69 1,610
(2,500) — —
— —  (600)

(11,546) (5,074) (7,577

52 95 198

52 95 198

(5.236) 3,940 876
7076 3236 2,360

$

1,940 § 7,176 $ 3,236

$

1493 3353 544

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business

American Independence Corp. (“AMIC” or “the Company”) is a holding company engaged in the in: urance
and reinsurance business through: a) its wholly owned insurance company, Independence American In:urance
Company (“Independence American”); b) its managing general underwriter subsidiaries: Independen:eCare
Holdings L.L.C. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “IndependenceCare™); Risk Assessment Str: tegies,
Inc. (“RAS"), and Marlton Risk Group LLC (“Marlton”); and ¢) its investment in Majestic Underwriters LLC
(*Majestic”). IndependenceCare, RAS and Marlton are collectively referred to as the “MGU Subsidiarie :.”

Prior to November 14, 2002, the Company (then known as SoftNet Systems, Inc.) was a holding co npany
principally engaged in providing Internet services. Four previously reported business segments, business center
services, satellite-based Internet services, cable-based Internet services and document management, have :eased
operations or have been sold, and accordingly are reported as discontinued operations (see Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Since November 2002, AMIC has been affiliated with Independence Holding Company (“IHC™), an ins wrance
holding company, which held 48% of AMIC’s outstanding common stock at December 31, 2006. The senior
management of IHC provides direction to the Company through a service agreement between the Compar:y and
IHC. IHC has also entered into long-term reinsurance treatics to cede medical stop-loss to the Conpany.
Additionally, the Company began reinsuring IHC’s New York statutory disability business in the third ¢ uarter
of 2004 and IHC’s short-term medical (“STM") and consumer-driven group major medical business in 2(103.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accounts of AMIC and its consolidated subsidiaries. All interconipany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that ¢ ffect:
(i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the d ite of
the financial statements; and (iii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 2 ctual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years’ consolidated financial statements and related no es to
the consolidated financial statements in order to conform to the current year presentation.

Investment in Majestic Underwriters LLC

The Company’s investment in Majestic Underwriters LLC (see Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Fina 1cial
Statements) is carried on the equity method with the Company’s share of income or loss credited or charge 3, as
appropriate, to net invested income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations with a corresponding charge t ) the
Company’s investment account. The Company also reduces its investment account for its proportionate share ¢ fthe
amortization expense for the intangible assets recorded in the acquisition.

Goaodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, which consist of licenses, are not amortized but are te sted
for impairment, on a reporting unit basis, at the end of the third quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently if
indicators arise. The Company defines its reporting units on a segment basis.

46




American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

For goodwill, if the book value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the implied fair value of goodwill is
compared with the carrying amount of goodwill. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value,
an impairment loss is recorded in an amount equal to that excess.

The Company’s intangible assets consisting of broker/third party relationships and marketing agreements are
amortized accordingly (see Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial instruments, which include cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, short-term investments, due from reinsurers and premiums receivable approximates their fair
values.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid securities with maturities of three months or less
from date of purchase. Restricted cash primarily consists of funds held by the MGUs for the benefit of their insurers
and reinsurers. These funds are restricted and are to be used to facilitate expeditious payment of approved claims,
The funds are replenished by the insurers and reinsurers as claims are paid by the MGUSs.

Short-Term Investments

Investments with original maturities of 91-days to | year are considered short-term investments and are carried
at cost which approximates fair value.

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (*‘resale agreements”) and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase (“repurchase agreements”) are carried at the amounts at which the securities will be subsequently resold
or repurchased as specified in the agreements.

Investment Securities

(i) Investments in fixed income securities, redeemable preferred stock equity securities and derivatives
{options and options on future contracts) are accounted for as follows:

(a) Securities which are held for trading purposes are carried at estimated fair value (“fair value”).
Changes in fair value are credited or charged, as appropriate, to net realized investment gains in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

{(b) Securities which may or may not be held to maturity (“‘available-for-sale securities”) are carried at
fair value. Unrealized gains or losses are credited or charged, as appropriate, directly to accumulated other
comprehensive income (a component of stockholders’ equity). Realized gains and losses on sales of
available-for-sale securities, and unrealized losses considered to be other than temporary, are credited or
charged to net realized investment gains in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

(ii) Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, represent obligations to replace borrowed securities that
have been sold. Such transactions occur in anticipation of declines in the fair value of the securities. The Company’s
risk is an increase in the fair value of the securities sold in excess of the consideration received, but that risk is
mitigated as a result of relationships to certain securities owned. Unrealized gains or losses on open transactions are
credited or charged, as appropriate, to net realized investment gains in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
While the transaction is open, the Company will also incur an expense for any accrued dividends or interest payable
to the lender of the securities. When the transaction is closed, the Company realizes a gain or loss in an amount
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

equal to the difference between the price at which the securities were sold and the cost of replacing the bo rowed
securities. There were no such transactions outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

(iii) Realized gains or losses on sales of securities are determined on the basis of specific identificition.

(iv) The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, such as put and call option contra:ts and
options on interest rate futures contracts, to minimize losses on portions of the Company’s fixed income port folio in
a rapidly changing interest rate environment. Equity index options are entered into to offset price fluctuatior s in the
equity markets. These derivative financial instruments are all readily marketable and are carried on the ( onsol-
idated Balance Sheets at their current fair value with changes in fair value (unrealized gains or losses), cre:lited or
charged, as appropriate, to net realized investment gains in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. All1ealized
gains and losses are reflected currently in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Losses on these instruments
were $19,000, $90,000 and $27,000 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(v) Fair value is determined by quoted market prices, where available, or by independent pricing s :rvices.

(vi} The Company reviews its investment securities regularly and determines whether other than ter 1porary
impairments have occurred. If a decline in fair value is judged by management to be other than temporary, 1loss is
recognized by a charge to the Consolidated Statements of Operations, establishing a new cost basis for the security.
The factors considered by management in its regular review include, but are not limited to: the length of t me and
extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; the financial condition and near-term prospects of thi: issuer;

. adverse changes in ratings announced by one or more rating agencies; whether the issuer of a debt security has
remained current on principal and interest payments; whether the decline in fair value appears to be issuer specific
or, alternatively, a reflection of general market or industry conditions (including, in the case of fixed maturities, the
effect of changes in market interest rates); and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the security for a f 2riod of
time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value. For securities within the scope of Emerging Issues Ta: k Force
Issue 99-20, such as purchased interest-only securities, an impairment loss is recognized when there ha:. been a
. decrease in expected cash flows combined with a decline in the security’s fair value below cost.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Improvements are capitalized, while re pair and
maintenance costs are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation of property and equipment has been jrovided
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets (3 years for computer eq lipment
and 7 years for furniture and fixtures). Amortization of leasehold improvements has been provided on the ;traight-
line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Premium and MGU Fee Income Revenue Recognition

Direct and assumed premiums from short-duration contracts are recognized as revenue over the perid of the
contracts in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. The Company records MGU fee i1 come as
policy premium payments are earncd. MGUs are compensated in two ways, They earn fee income based on the
volume of business produced, and collect profit-sharing commissions if such business exceeds certain proitability
benchmarks. Profit-sharing commissions are accounted for beginning in the period in which the Company believes
they are reasonably estimable, which is typically at the point that claims have developed to a level whe e Claim
Development Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim level . Profit-
sharing commissions are a function of an MGU attaining certain profitability thresholds and could gre uly vary
from quarter to quarter.
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

MGU fee income consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
MGU fee income . ... . i et 510,238  $12,284  $14,848
MGU fee income profit commissions. .. .................... 118 1,872 2,749

310,356 314,156  $17.597

Insurance Reserves

The Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, including legal, other fees, and costs not associated with specific claims but related to the claims payment
function, for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting period. These loss reserves
are based on actuarial assumptions and are maintained at levels that are in accordance with US generally accepted
accounting principles. Many factors could affect these reserves, including economic and social conditions,
frequency and severity of claims, medical trend resulting from the influences of underlying cost inflation, changes
in utilization and demand for medical services, and changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards in
litigation. Therefore, the Company’s reserves are necessarily based on estimates, assumptions and analysis of
historical experience. The Company’s results depend upon the variation between actuat claims experience and the
assumptions used in determining reserves and pricing products. Reserve assumptions and estimates require
significant judgment and, therefore, are inherently uncertain. The Company cannot determine with precision the
ultimate amounts that will be paid for actual claims or the timing of those payments. The Company’s estimate of
loss represents management’s estimate of the Company’s liability at the balance sheet date.

All of the Company’s contracts are short-duration and are accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the
armnount of loss inherent in that period’s claims, including losses incurred for claims that have not been reported
(*1BNR™). Short-duration contract loss estimates rely on actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience for
similar historical events.

The two “primary” or “key” assumptions underlying the calculation of loss reserves for medical stop-loss
business are (i) projected net loss ratio, and (ii) claim development patterns. The projected net loss ratio is set at
expected levels consistent with the underlying pricing assumptions (“Projected Net Loss Ratio™). Claim devel-
opment patterns are set quarterly as reserve estimates are developed and are based on recent claim development
history (“Claim Development Patterns™). The Company uses 1the Projected Net Loss Ratio to establish reserves until
developing losses provide a better indication of ultimate results and it is feasible to set reserves based on Claim
Development Patterns. The Company has concluded that a reasonably likely change in the Projected Net Loss Ratio
assumption could have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity
(“Material Effect”) but a reasonably likely change in the Claim Development Pattern would not have a Material
Effect.

Projected Net Loss Ratio

Generally, during the first twelve months of an underwriting year, reserves for medical stop-loss are first set at
the Projected Net Loss Ratio, which is set using pricing assumptions developed using completed prior experience
trended forward. The Projected Net Loss Ratio is the Company’s best estimate of future performance until such
time as developing losses provide a better indication of ultimate results.

Major factors that affect the Projected Net Loss Ratio assumption in reserving for medical stop-loss relate to:
(i) frequency and severity of claims; (ii} changes in medical trend resulting from the influences of underlying cost
inflation, changes in utilization and demand for medical services, the impact of new medical technology and
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

changes in medical treatment protocols; and (iii) the adherence by the MGUs that produce and admini: ter this
business to the Company’s underwriting guidelines.

Claim Development Patterns

Subsequent to the first twelve months of an underwriting year, the Company’s developing losses p. ovide a
better indication of ultimate losses. At this point, claims have developed to a level where Claim Deve opment
Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim levels. Developmen factors
based on historical patterns are applied to paid and reported claims to estimate fully developed claim:. Claim
Development Patterns are reviewed quarterly as reserve estimates are developed and are based on rece it claim
development history. The Company must determine whether changes in development represent true indic: tions of
emerging experience or are simply due to random claim fluctuations.

Liabilities for insurance reserves for fully insured medical business are established to provide for the liability
for incurred but not paid claims. Reserves are calculated using standard actuarial methods and practices. Kistorical
paid claim patterns are reviewed and estimated development factors are applied to immature incurred v onths to
calculate these reserves. The primary assumption in the determination of fully insured reserves is that t istorical
claim development patterns are representative of future claim development patterns. Factors which may a fect this
assumption include changes in claim payment processing times and procedures, changes in time Jlelay in
submission of claims and the incidence of unusually large claims.

While these calculations are based on standard methodologies, they are estimates based on historical patterns.
To the extent that actual claim payment patterns differ from historical patterns, such estimated reserve:. may be
redundant or inadequate. The effects of such deviations are evaluated by considering claim backlog statistics and
reviewing the reasonableness of projected claim ratios. Other factors which may affect the accuracy of reserve
estimates include the proportion of large claims which may take longer to adjudicate, changes in billing p: tterns by
providers and changes in claim management practices such as hospital bill audits.

Liabitities for insurance reserves on STM and disability coverages are computed using claim dev :lopment
patterns and projected loss ratios derived from actual historical premium and claim data.

Management believes that the Company’s methods of estimating the liabilities for insurance reserves provided
appropriate levels of reserves at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. Changes in the Company s reserve
estimates are recorded through a charge or credit to its earnings.

Reinsurance

due from reinsurers or due to reinsurers.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax : ssets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financi: | carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis, and operating loss and tax ci edit carry
forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply ‘o taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that in:ludes the
enactment date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets where it is more
likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements).
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Stock-Based Compensation and Change in Accounting Principle

On November 14, 2002, the Company adopted certain provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 1237). SFAS 123 established a fair-
value-based method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans. Pursuant to the transition provisions of
SFAS 123, the Company applied the fair value method of accounting to all option grants issued on or after
October 1, 2002. The fair value method was not applied to stock option awards granted prior to October 1, 2002.
Such awards continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method pursuant to APB 25, except to the extent
those prior years’ awards are modified subsequent to October 1, 2002. At December 31, 2006 all such shares
accounted for under APB 25 were fully vested or expired.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), ““Share Based Payment”, which
requires compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial
statements, based upon the fair value of the instruments issued. SFAS No. 123(R) covers a wide range of
share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted stock plans, performance-based
awards, share appreciation rights and employee purchase plans. SFAS No. 123(R) replaces SFAS No. 123, In
March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107
{(SAB 107) regarding the SEC’s interpretation of SFAS No. 123(R) and the valuation of share-based payments
for public companies. The company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and
accordingly recorded share-based payment expense in selling, general and administrative expenses. Since the
Company previously adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123, effective November 14, 2002, the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a material impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Per Common Share

Basic income per common share is computed using the weighted average number of common stock shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted income per common share is computed using the weighted average number
of common stock shares and common stock equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Common stock
equivalents consist of stock options (using the “treasury stock” method). Common Stock equivalent shares are
excluded from the computation if the effect is anti-dilutive. As a result of the anti-dilutive effect, common stock
equivalent shares have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for periods presented with
a net loss. Included in the diluted earnings per share calculation for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, are 54,000,
79,000 and 101,000 shares, respectively, from the assumed exercise of options using the treasury stock method. Net
income does not change as a result of the assumed dilution of options.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB™} issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments™ (“SFAS 155™), which
amends Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities” (“SFAS 140”). SFAS 155
simplifies the accounting for certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments by allowing them to
be accounted for as a whole if the holder elects to account for the whole instrument on a fair value basis. SFAS 155
also clarifies and amends certain other provisions of SFAS 133 and SFAS 140, SFAS 155 is effective for all financial
instruments acquired, issued or subject to a re-measurement event occurring in fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2006. Adoption of SFAS 155 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“Interpretation 48™), which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
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to be taken in a tax return. The recognition threshold is based on a determination of whether # is more likely t 1an not
that a tax position will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position. O1ly tax
positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the effective date may be recogn zed or
continue to be recognized upon adoption of Interpretation 48. Interpretation 48 also provides guidaice on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and trarsition.
Interpretation 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The cumulative effect of af plying
the provisions of Interpretation 48 is reported as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the year of
adoption. The amount of the cumulative-effect adjustment is the difference between the net amount of ass :ts and
liabilities recognized in the balance sheet prior to the application of Interpretation 48 and the net amount o:" assets
and liabilities recognized as a result of applying Interpretation 48, Adoption of Interpretation 48 on January , 2007
is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Faii Value
Measurements” (“SFAS 1577), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair val 1¢ and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting pronunce-
ments that require or permit fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Adoption of SFAS 157 is
not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Acccunting
Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Clurrent
Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of the
carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a current year misstat :ment.
The SEC staff believes that registrants should quantify errors using both a balance sheet and an income sta ement
approach and evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that, when all rilevant
quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material. SAB 108 was effective for the year ended
December 31, 2006 and did not affect the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

3. Goodwill

The Company completed its annual impairment testing of goodwill and an impairment charge vwas not
required.

Segment information is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 21,

2006 2005
Goodwill:
Independence AMEICAN . ... ...\ ut it iini et enannn $12,295 $12,2¢5
MGU Subsidiaries. . .. ..o it i i e e e e e e e e 11,859 11,89
COTPOTALE . . .. i e e e e e e — -

$24,154  $24,1:4
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4. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Definitive Indefinite Definitive Indefinite
Lives Lives Total Lives Lives Total

Gross Carrying Value
Balance beginning of period. . . . $ 4,814 $100 $4914 $4814 $100 £4914
Additions ................. 3,243 — 3,243 — — —
Batance end of period .. ... ... 8,057 100 8.157 4,814 100 4,914
Accumulated Amortization
Balance beginning of period. ...  (4,188) —_ (4,188) (3,379) — (3,379
Amortization expense . ....... 427 — 427) (809) — (809)
Balance end of period . ....... (4,615) — (4,615) (4,188) — (4,188)
Net intangible assets ... ..., .. $ 3,442 $100 $3542 % 626 $100 $ 726
Weighted average remaining life

inyears................. 2.24 0.68

Additions of $3,243,000 to intangible assets represent the cash paid of 32,500,000 and a derivative issued to
EDH according to terms set forth in Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Expected amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending

December 31,
2007 e $ 841
2008 L 656
2000 L e 648
2000 e e 649
7.1 648
$3.442

5. Marketing Agreements

On February 22, 2006, AMIC entered into an agreement with Employers Direct Health (“EDH™). Under this
agreement, EDH began writing employer medical stop-loss through Independence American in 2006, and will
move the majority of its existing block of employer-sponsored group major medical and medical stop-loss to
Independence American during 2007. Independence American paid EDH $2,500,000, which EDH simultaneously
paid to Independence Holding Company (“IHC™) in consideration of IHC issuing 125,000 shares of IHC common
stock (“IHC Stock™) to EDH. The IHC Stock is held in escrow by Independence American until such time as the
aggregate annualized premiums written through EDH reaches $30 million.

The EDH Agreement terminates on December 31, 2011; provided, it will automatically be extended to
December 31, 2016, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions as to premium volume and profitability. Assuming
these conditions are satisfied, EDH would be entitled to up to an additional $2,500,000 depending on the value of
the IHC Stock as of December 31, 2011. The Company recorded a derivative liability (“EDH Derivative™) and an
intangible asset on its balance sheet in the amount of $743,000 to account for the fair value of such contingent
payment at closing. The value of the EDH Derivative will be evaluated each quarter and the corresponding changes
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in fair value will be reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. If the EDH Agreement is exte nded to
December 31, 2016, subject to satisfaction of certain further conditions as to premium volume and profi ability,
EDH would be entitled to up to an additional $5,000,000 depending on the value of the IHC Stocc as of
December 31, 2016. in addition, EDH could be entitled to a $1,000,000 bonus on December 31, 2013 su sject to
satisfaction of certain conditions as to premium volume and profitability.

The Company has classified the $2,500,000 payment and $743,000 derivative as an intangible asset t1at will
be amortized over the five year contract period. Such amortization will start in 2007 to coincide with the traasfer of
business on January 1, 2007.

As part of the agreement, an affiliate of EDH and Independence American agreed to a profit/loss sharing
arrangement, whereby Independence American will pay to, or receive from, such affiliate 35% of the under writing
profit or loss of the business written by Independence American. Independence American will receive customary
carrier fees on the business written on its paper.

In addition, the Company has entered into an agreement with a national, career agent marketing orgar ization
to begin marketing health plans to individuals and families utilizing Independence American as the carri:r. The
agency projects that it will have $10 million of annualized premiums ($6 million on an earned ba 3is) on
Independence American paper as of December 31, 2007. Independence American initially anticipates re:aining
50% of the risk on this business. The program will be administered by Insurers Administrative Corpor: tion, a
wholly owned subsidiary of IHC. These amounts are less than what was initially disclosed due to a lat:r than
anticipated launch date as a result of product design changes and filing requirements.

6. Investments

The cost (amortized cost with respect to certain fixed maturities), gross unrealized gains, gross unr:alized
losses and fair value of long-term investment securities are as follows:

December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)
FIXED MATURITIES
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:
Corporate Securities. .. . .......vveainnan - $22,241 $ 8 $ (693) $21,5%6
Collateralized mortgage obligations {CMO) and
asset backed securities (ABS). .. ........... 9,048 3 (176) 8,875
States, municipalities and political subdivisions . . 1,178 — 4 1,174
US. Government. .. .......onvvenunnaiann 8,211 4 (232) 7,983
Government sponsored enterprise (GSE) . ... ... 3,046 — (64} 2,962
Agency mortgage backed pass through securities
(MBS). ... 133 — (3) 13D
Total fixed maturities . . ... oo iv o s $43,857 315 $(1,172)  $42,70)
EQUITY SECURITIES
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Preferred stock .. ... ... i $ 2,215 $9 $ (43 82181

II
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December 31, 2005
(iross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Cains Losses Value

{In thousands)

FIXED MATURITIES
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:
Corporate Securities. - . . .........vournn... $22,849 $23 $ (620) $22,252
CMOand ABS . ... ... .. ... .. ... .... 5,570 — 140y 5,430
U.S. GOVEIMMENt. . . oo v oo 7,802 — (167) 7,635
GSE . . ... 3,563 — (62) 3,501
MBS. ... 1,654 — (28) 1,626
Total fixed matrities . . ................ $41,438 $23 $(1,017)  $40,444
EQUITY SECURITIES
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Preferred Stock ... .........iiiiii . $1954  $5 $ (75 81884

Government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities consist of Federat Home Loan Morngage
Corporation and Federal National Mortgage Association securities.

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities at December 31, 2006 by contractual maturity are shown
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. The average life of morigage backed securities is
affected by prepayments on the underlying ioans and, therefore, is materially shorter than the original stated
maturity.

December 31, 2006

Amortized Fair %o of Fair
Cost Value Value

(In thousands)

Dueinone year orless . ... .o.ovve e inn .., 8 — 8 — —
Due after one year through five years .. .. ...... .. ......... 10,215 10,046 23%
Due after five years throughtenyears .. ................... 9,781 9,491 22%
Dueaftertenyears .. ............ ... .t iiiieeannio.. 11,634 11,176 _26%
31,630 30,713 71%
CMO, ABS,and MBS 15 years. . ...........cuvvunnnin.., 9,424 9,241 22%
20 years . L e 340 333 1%
B0 years . ... e e 2,463 2,413 _ %
Total. . ... e $43,857  $42,700 100%
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The following tables summarizes, for all securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, the aggregate fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time, those securities t} at have
continuously been in an unrealized loss position (in thousands):

December 31, 2006

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total _
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unreali ed
Value Loss Value Losses * Value Losse;
FIXED MATURITIES:
Corporate securities . ... ... $ 6,920 $116 $12,858 $ 565 $19,778 $ 681
CMQand ABS .......... 2,724 30 4,742 146 7.466 176
States, municipalities and
political subdivisions .. .. 1,173 4 — — 1,173 4
U.S. Government . . .. ... .. 24 — 7.548 232 7.572 2:2
GSE .................. 288 11 2,982 65 3,270 "6
MBS . ... .. — — 130 3 130 _:i
Total fixed maturities . ... $11,129 $161 $28,260 $1,011 $39,389 $I,1'g
Preferred Stock. .. ...... $ 895 $ 5 $ 672 $ 38 $ 1,567 $§ <3
December 31, 2005 _
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total _
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unreal zed
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losss
FIXED MATURITIES:
Corporate securities . . ... ... $13,003 $392 $2,872 $183 $15,875 § 515
CMOand ABS . .......... 2,498 46 2,033 04 5,431 110
U.S, Government . . ........ 6,760 134 876 33 7,636 157
GSE . ... .. e 5,516 107 — — 5,516 17
MBS .. ... .. o 150 2 1,475 26 1,625 L E
Total fixed maturities . . . . . $27.927 $681 $8,156 $336 $36,083 M E
Preferred Stock ... ........ $ 559 $ 63 $ 325 512 $ 884 8 75

Substantially all of the unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 relate to investment grade securities
and are attributable to changes in market interest rates subsequent to purchase. The Company re: ews its
investments regularly and monitors its investments for impairments. A total of 31 securities were in a ccntinuous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and 54 securities for 12 months or longer as of December 2006. A
total of 52 securities were in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and 21 securities for
12 months or longer as of December 31, 2005. For fixed maturities, there are no securities past due or sect rities for
which the Company currently believes it is not probable that it will collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the investment. Based on management’s review of the portfolio, which considered th2 various
factors described in Note 2, including the extent and duration of the unrealized losses and the Company’s i itent and
ability to hold securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value, the Company did not
consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2006 and 2003.

The Company had derivative instruments representing the value of the contingent payment due to EDH as of
December 31, 2006 (see Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). There were no « envative
instruments as of December 31, 2005.
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Gross gains of $115,000 and gross losses of $336,000 were realized on sales of available-for-sale securities for

the year ended December 31, 2006.

Gross gains of $478,000 and gross losses of $481,000 were realized on sales of available-for-sale securities for

the year ended December 31, 2005.

Gross gains of $876,000 and gross losses of $903,000 (including $134,000 from temporary impairment) were

realized on sales of available-for-sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The Company maintains a securities trading account in addition to its securities classified as availa-

ble-for-sale. The Company realized net gains from trading securities of $292,000 in 2006, $248,000 in 2005
and $249,000 in 2004. The Company had $4.0 million and $3.6 million, on average, in trading securities during
2006 and 2005, respectively. All such trading securities were liquidated at December 31, 2006 and 2003.

Major categories of net investment income for years 2006, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)
Fixed maturities . .. ... ... i $2,263 51,888  §$1,974
Equity securities. ... ... ... .. . . i e 169 87 147
Short-term investments . . .. ... ... ... ... .. e 262 209 44
OHher . . e 471 291 89
Equity income — Majestic . . ... . ... ... . . 102 26 37

$3.267 32,501  $2,291

Net realized investment gains for years 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Fixed Maturities . . ... ..t e e $(195) % (14) $ 10
Equity securities. . ... ... ... e 288 370 238
Other gains (losses) ... ... ... .. i 69 (111) (26)
EDH Derivative . ... ... i et e e (96) — —
Net realized investment gain. ... ......... ... ... . ... .. ... ..., 66 §$245 5222

7. Other Long-Term Investments

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the Company had an equity investment in Majestic with a

carrying value of $1,009,000 and 1,082,000, respectively. For fiscal years 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded
$102,000 and $26,000, respectively, for its share of income from its investment in Majestic.
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8. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, which are included in other assets, consist of the following (in thousands):

As of December : L

Twee 205
Fumiture and fixtures. ... ... ... o $ 580 3 73
Leasehold improvements . . ... ... ... . .ttt i e e 126 26
EqUuIipment. . ... . e e %40 935
Tt © . e e e 1,646 1,134
Less allowance for depreciation . .. ............ .. .. .. ... Ll _(1,496) (1,'34)
Fixed assets, Net . ..o vttt it et i e e e $ 150 §___-IOO

9. Discontinued Operations

Until April 2002, the Company (then known as SoftNet Systems, Inc.) was an Internet service provider. Due to
difficult and deteriorating conditions in that market, the Company discontinued this business. In Deceml er 2000,
the Company’s board of directors approved a plan to discontinue the operations of its subsidiary, ISP Chanel, Inc.,
which had provided cable-based Internet access and related services, and the operations of another subsidiary,
Aerzone Corporation, which provided Internet and related services at airports. In April 2002, the Compan /, ceased
operations of its remaining operating subsidiary, Intelligent Communications, Inc., following the disposit on of its
key assets. The operating results of these discontinued operations have been segregated from continuing opserations
and are reported as a gain or loss from discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of of srations.
Although it is difficult to predict the final results, the gain or loss on disposition from discontinued o)erations
includes management’s estimates of costs to wind down the business and costs to settle its outstanding li abilities.
The actual results could differ from these estimates. The net liabilities associated with discontinued oper: tions are
reflected in net liabilities associated with discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

Discontinued Operations of Intelligent Communications, Inc.

On March 29, 2002, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Intellicom, entered into an agréement to
sell its operating business and certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc. Following the sale of its operating bus ness and
certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc., the Company’s board of directors unanimously agreed to cease the o jerations
of Intellicom on April 3, 2002. Principally due to the Company’s guaranty of Intellicom’s lease for its {acility in
Livermore, California, the Company has reserves for discontinued operations of Intellicom of $555,00) for this
liability at December 31, 2006, and $808,000 at December 31, 2005. In October of 2006, the Company en ered into
an agreement with a third party to sublease the property in Livermore, California for the remaining life of he lease.
The income associated with the sublease was previously estimated in the reserve balance. Loss from disp ssition of
discontinued operations results from re-estimation of certain expected expenses.

Discontinued Operations of Aerzone Corporation

On January 24, 2000, the Company founded Aerzone (formerly SoftNet Zone, Inc.) to provide h: gh-speed
Internet access to global business travelers. As part of the Aerzone business, the Company acquired Lap op Lane,
on April 21, 2000. On December 19, 2000, the Company decided to discontinue the Aerzone business in light of
significant long-term capital needs and the difficulty of securing the necessary financing because of the cu: rent state
of the financial markets. The Company has no remaining reserve for Aerzone at December 31, 2006.
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Discontinued Operations of ISP Channel, Inc.

On December 7, 2000, the Company’s board of directors approved a plan to discontinue providing cable-based
[nternet services through its ISP Channel subsidiary by December 31, 2000, because consolidation in the cable
television industry made it difficult for ISP Channel to achieve the economies of scale necessary to provide such
services profitably, and the Company was no longer able to bear the costs of maintaining the ISP Channel. The
Company has no remaining reserve for ISP Channel at December 31, 2006,

Discontinued Operations of Micregraphic Technology Corporation

As a result of the December 31, 1999 sale of MTC to Global Information Distribution GmbH (“GID™), the

Company discontinued operations of MTC. The Company has no remaining reserve for MTC at December 31,
2006.

Discontinued Operations of Kansas Communications, Inc

As a result of the February 12, 1999 sale of the assets of the telecommunications segment, KCI, to Convergent
Communications Services, Inc., the Company discontinued this segment. The Company has no remaining reserve
for KCI at December 31, 2006.

The results of discontinued operations are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Revenues . . . ... $— § — §—
Expenses
Intellicom. ... ... .0 (83 (147 48
ABIZONE . o L e e e e — 27 _
ISP Channel . . ... .. . e e — — 153
M C . e e — 30 19
< — — 20
Income (loss) before INCOME tAXES . . . . ... it {(83) (90) 240
Benefit (provision)} for income taxes . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ....... 29 31 —
Netincome (1088). .. ..ottt i e e e e $54) % (59) %240

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Fixed maturities with a carrying value of $4,444,946 are on deposit with various state insurance departments at
December 31, 2006,

The Company has operating leases for office space and certain other office equipment. These operating leases
provide for minimum rents and generally include options to renew for additional periods.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 200€, are as
follows (in thousands):

Net Operating

Year Ending December 31, Leases
2007 e e e $ 554
L S 516
200D e e e e 324
7 1 22
.16 1 1 P 11€
2012 and thereafter . ... ... ... ... 116
L | $1,84¢

The minimum lease payments shown above do not include $315,000 of sublease income to be receivi d in the
future under non-cancelable subleases,

The Company’s net rent expense from continuing operations for fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 204 were
$649,000, $872,000 and $923,000, respectively.

The Company has additional obligations in regard to its agreement with EDH as further described in I ote 5 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Under certain circumstances set forth in the Limited Liability Company Agreements of Marlton and M ajestic,
the Company has the right and/or obligation to purchase some or all of the minority interests in Mar ton and
Majestic.

Independence American maintains a revolving Letter of Credit (“LOC”) with a financial institution tc support
reinsurance obligations of Independence American in the ordinary course of business. The LOC has an out standing
face amount up to $5,000,000 although Independence American has not drawn upon funds to date. The LOC renews
October 15 of each year, unless cancelied by Independence American.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of its bu-.inesses.
The Company has established reserves that it believes are sufficient given information presently available r:lated to
its outstanding legal proceedings and claims. The Company believes the results of pending legal proceed ngs and
claims are not expected to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or cash flows, althou zh there
could be a material effect on its results of operations for a particular period.

11. Stock Options
1998 Stock Incentive Plan (“1998 Plan’’)

Effective October 1, 1998, the Company implemented the 1998 Plan, which the Company’s stoc cholders
approved on April 13, 1999, The 1998 Plan provides for the grants of non-statutory and incentive stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance shares, and other awards to officers, emplryee and
other individuals. Under the terms of the 1998 Plan, stock options have a maximum term of ten years from the date
of grant, and have various vesting criteria depending on the grant with most grants vesting 25% on the 1 irst year
anniversary date of the grant and ratably over the next 36 months. In addition, the number of common stou k shares
reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan will automatically increase on the first trading day of each calen lar year,
beginning in calendar year 2000, by an amount equal to seven percent of the total number of common sto k shares
outstanding on the last trading day of the preceding calendar year, but in no event will any such annual increase
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exceed 1,333,333 shares, subject to adjustment for subsequent stock splits, stock dividends and similar transactions.
At December 31, 2006, a total of 5,966,867 stock shares are reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan. At
December 31, 2006, stock options for 491,500 common stock shares were outstanding, stock options for 425,999
common stock shares were vested, and 5,411,893 common stock shares remained available for future stock options
grants and other awards.

Options Outstanding

The following table summarizes the cutstanding options to purchase common stock shares for years 2006,
2005 and 2004;

Outstanding Options
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Shares Price
Balance, December 31,2003 ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... .. 454,933  $21.62
Granted. . ... ... .. e 145,671 14.43
Exercised ... ... .. e (16,694) 11.81
Canceled. . .. ... e (136,358) 35.21
Balance, December 31,2004 . ... ... ...... ... .. . ... ... 447,552 15.50
Granted. . . ... .. e e e 82,333 13.80
Exercised . ... .. e (12,334) 7.80
Canceled. . .. ... . . e (13,384) 35.00
Balance, December 31, 2005 . . .. ... .. ... ... 504,167 14.90
Granted. . . ... . e e e e e — —
Exercised ... ... .. e (6,667) 7.80
Canceled. . . ... ... . (6,000) 14.01
Balance, December 31,2006 . ... .. ... ... 491,500  $15.00

The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006:
Quistanding Options

‘X:igrl;:;: Vested Options

Remaining Weighted Weighted

Contractual Average Average

Life Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Shares {Years) Price Shares Price
$394 t0 51000 .................. 238,063 4.64 $ 660 236535 § 6.59
1001to 2000.................. 193,894 6.83 14.55 129,921 14.92
2001t 4000 .................. 25,834 0.51 29.60 - 25,834 29.60
40010 7144 ... ... ... ... ... 33,709 248 $5.75 33,709 65.75
3399 t0§7144 .. ... 491,500 3.14 $15.00 425999  $15.21

Stock-Based Compensation and Change in Accounting Principle

On November 14, 2002, the Company adopted certain provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123"). SFAS 123 established a fair-
value-based method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans. Pursuant to the transition provisions of
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SFAS 123, the Company applied the fair value method of accounting to all option grants issued on or after
QOctober 1, 2002. The fair value method was not applied to stock option awards granted prior to October 1, 2002.
Such awards continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method pursuant to APB 235, except to thie extent
those prior years’ awards are modified subsequent to October 1, 2002. At December 31, 2006 all such shares
accounted for under APB 25 were fully vested or expired.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share Based Paymen' ', which
requires compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the inancial
statements, based upon the fair value of the instruments issued. SFAS No. 123(R) covers a wide :ange of
share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted stock plans, performan :e-based
awards, share appreciation rights and employee purchase plans. SFAS No. 123(R) replaces SFAS No. 123, which
established as preferable a fair value based method of accounting for share-based compensation with en ployees,
but permitted the option of continuing to apply the guidance of APB Opinion No. 25, as long as the no'es to the
financial statements disclosed the effects of the preferable fair value method. In March 2005, the Secwities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (SAB 107) regarding the SE(’’s inter-
pretation of SFAS No. 123(R) and the valuation of share-based payments for public companies. The com pany has
applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and accordingly recorded shi re-based
payment expense in selling, general and administrative expenses. Since the Company previously adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 123, effective November 14, 2002, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have : material
impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Had the Company applied the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensaticn awards
issued prior to October 1, 2002, the Company’s net income (loss) and income (loss) per share would have been the
pro forma amounts as follows (in thousands except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 24
(In thousands)

Net income (loss) asreported:. . ... ... $1,454 $5,460 $5.904
Add stock-based compensation expense included in reported

IMCOMIE . o ottt et e i s 235 227 456
Deduct stock-based compensation expense determined under the

fair value based method forallawards. . ... .............. (235) 227 313
Pro forma net income (10SS) . .. ... vvvrtin e $1,454 $5,460 $:,987
Basic income (loss) per common share:

Aseeported. .. ... 8 .17 $ .64 $ 70

Proforma........ ... ... i, $ .17 $ .64 $ 71
Diluted income {loss) per common share:

Asreported. . ......... [P $ .17 S 64 $ .69

ProfOorma. . .....coovniin i $ .17 § 64 $ 70

The Company recorded an expense of approximately $235,000 and $227,000 for fiscal 2006 wnd 2005,
respectively, related to options issued under the fair value based method. As of December 31, 2006, there was
$305,000 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested options which will be recog rized over
the remaining requisite service periods.
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The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006:

Number of options cutstanding . . .. .. ... e 491,500
Number of options exercisable ... ... ... ... ... . . ... 425,999
Weighted average exercise PriCe . . .. ... ov ittt et $ 15.00
Aggregate intrinsic value for all options outstanding . . ............... ... .. ..... $ 906,068
Aggregate intrinsic value for all exercisable options. . .. ........ ... ... ... ...... $ 903,080
Weighted average contractual term remaining . . . . . ... ...ttt i 5.1 years

The fair value of each stock option on the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions for years 2006, 2005 and 2004:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Volatility . . ... e — 27.15% 43.34%
Risk-free interest rate . ........ .. ... .0t iiurinrnerienanannn — 401%  3.82%
Dividend yield. .. .. ... ... . .. . e — — —_
Expected lives inyears . ... ... . ... . e — 5.00 5.00
Weighted average fairvalue. .. ......... ... ... ... ... . .. ... $— $428 §$ 755

No options were granted for the period ended December 31, 2006.

12, Related Party Transactions

Independence American is primarily a reinsurer, and currently derives most of its business from pro rata quota
share reinsurance treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison Nationa! Life which are wholly owned
subsidiaries of IHC. These treaties were entered into in 2002 and terminate on December 31, 2014, unless
terminated sooner by Independence American, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life must cede at least
15% of their medical stop-loss business to Independence American under these treaties. Additionally, Standard
Security Life, Madison National Life and Independence American have received regulatory approval to cede up to
30% to Independence American under most of IHC’s medical stop<loss programs. For the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceded an average of 22.2% and
21.9%, respectively, of their medical stop-loss businress to Independence American. Commencing in July 2004,
Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-term statutory disability benefit
product (“DBL") business. In 2005, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life began ceding 10% of the
majority of its fully insured business to Independence American,

IHC provides the Company with pro rata quota share reinsurance on business written by Independence
American. This business accounted for approximately 2% of the Company’s total earned premiums at December 31,
2006. Commencing in January 2004, Independence American began ceding 30% of its provider excess insurance to
Madison National Life. In January 2005, Independence American increased the amount ceded to Madison National
Life to 55%. This treaty was entered into on January 1, 2004 and will remain in force for an indefinite period, untess
terminated by either party as of any December 31. The Company is not aware of any regulatory or other restrictions
on the ability of IHC to fund its obligations under agreements in which THC reinsures such provider excess business.
Any such restrictions would at this point have a minimal impact on the Company. In addition, in 2006 Independence
American ceded 50% of its STM business to unrelated reinsurers.

AMIC and its subsidiaries incurred expense of $622,000, $564,000 and $550,000 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 respectively, from its service agreements with [HC and its subsidiaries. These
payments reimburse IHC and its subsidiaries, at agreed upon rates including an overhead factor, for management
services provided to AMIC and its subsidiaries, including accounting, legal, compliance, underwriting, and claims.
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Independence American assumes these premiums from Standard Security Life and Madison Natio.al Life,
and records related insurance income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Independence American pays admir istrative
fees and commissions to subsidiaries of IHC in connection with fully insured health business wiitten by
Independence American. Additionally, the MGU Subsidiaries market, underwrite and provide admir istrative
services {including premium collection, medical management and claims adjudication) for a substantial p ytion of
the medical stop-loss business written by the insurance subsidiaries of IHC and records related income, a: sets and
liabilities in connection with that business. Such related party information is disclosed on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company also contracts for several types of insurance
coverage (e.g. directors and officers and professional liability coverage) jointly with IHC. The cost of this « overage
is split proportionally between the Company and IHC according to the type of risk and AMIC’s portion is ecorded
in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.

| 13. Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal income tax return on a September 30 jiscal tax
year. The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the periods ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2014 are as

follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
CURRENT:

US. Federal ........ .. e $14 $ 76 3% 137
State and local ... ... .. . e e e 741 367
o1 323 _ 504

| DEFERRED:
US. Federal .. ... ... i i e 778 {(294) 3.018
| State and local . ... ..ot e e 91 91 47

869 (203) 3065
$960 $120 $3 569

| Taxes computed at the Federal statutory rate of 35% for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 ind 2004
! are reconciled to the Company’s actual income tax expense (benefit) as follows:

2006 2005 204
(In thousands)

Tax computed at the SIRILIOTY TAte ... ... ... ouniuninnnennninns $863 $1974 %3315
Dividends received deduction and tax exempt interest ... ........... 20) (1) (19)
State and local income taxes, net of Federal effect ... ............. 109 220 270
Valuation allowance . .. .. ...t e e e e — (2,079) —
Other, M. . e e e e e e e _ 8 6 3
Income tax (benefit) . . ... ... ... i $960 $ 120 $3.569

The Federal income tax provision (benefit) for the periods ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 20( 4 include
income tax provisions of $792,000, $1,861,000 and $3.155,000, respectively, for the utilization of the C)mpany’s
Federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs). The Company recorded deferred tax benefits on dis :ontinued
operations of $29,000, $31,000 and 0 for the periods ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, wlich were
included in Gain (loss) on Disposition of Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the Statement of Op :rations.
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the net deferred tax assets at

December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:

Net liabilities associated with discontinued operations . ... .............
FVESLIMENES . . ...t
Unpaid accruals .. ... .. .. e e
Property and equipment ... ........ .. .. ... . ... ... . i

T L e e e e
Compensation accruals . .. .. ... e e
Goodwill .. .. e

INSU AN T V. . . ottt ettt et e e e e e e
Unrealized securities losses . . . .. ... i e e
Net operating loss carryforwards . ... ... .. ... ... ... ... .,

Total gross deferred tax assets . . . . .. ..o i e
Less valuation allowance. . ... ... ... ... i e e

Net deferred taX aS8618 . . ..o v vttt et e e e i e e
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:

Total gross deferred tax liabilities . ......... ... ... ... ... ... .......

Net defermed tax @ssel . . . .. ot ittt ittt e e s

2006

2005

(In thousands)

$ 222 § 324
644 644

161 162

141 141

— 8
1,182 1,052
410 512

116 121

416 372
98,618 98,836
101,910 102,172
(87,104)  (87.060)
14,806 15,112
(1,833)  (1,361)
(1,833)  (1,361)

$ 12973 $ 13,751

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company increased its valuation allowance by $44,000
representing and increase of deferred tax on unrealized losses allocated to equity. During the year ended
December 31, 2005, the Company reduced its valuation allowance by $1,807,000. This reduction included
$2,079,000 for the projected utilization of Federal operating losses which was allocated to operations and a

$272,000 increase of deferred tax on unrealized losses allocated to equity.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Management believes that it is more likely
than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these net deferred tax asszts recorded at December 31, 2006.
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At December 31, 2006, the Company had Federal net operating loss carryforwards of appro:.imately
$275.811,000 which expire as follows (in thousands).

Tax Year:
2000 L e e e e e $ 20,169
2020 . . e e e e e e 70,127
202 e e e e e e 142130
{12y A 41,152
22074 28
12, S R 2
1.2 T U 3

$275, 311

At December 31, 2006, the Company also had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $25 814,000
for state income tax purposes, primarily in the State of California. Management believes that it is mere lil ely than
not that the state tax benefit of these net operating loss carryforwards will not be realized.

AMIC’s ability to utilize its Federal Net Operating Loss Carrryforwards (“NOLs™) would be sub: tantially
reduced if AMIC were to undergo an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382(g)(1) of the Internal
Revenue Code. AMIC will be treated as having had an “ownership change™ if there is more than a 50% in :rease in
stock ownership during a three year *“testing period” by “5% stockholders.” In order to reduce the risk of an
ownership change, in November 2002, AMIC’s stockholders approved an amendment to its Certi icate of
Incorporation restricting transfers of shares of its common stock that could result in the imposition of lirzitations
on the use, for federal, state and city income tax purposes, of AMIC’s carryforwards of net operating lcsses and
certain federal income tax credits. The Certificate of Incorporation generally restricts any person from atter 1pting to
sell, transfer or dispose, or purchase or acquire any AMIC stock, if such transfer would affect the perce ntage of
AMIC stock owned by a 5% stockholder. Any person attempting such a transfer will be required, prior to tt e date of
any proposed transfer, to request in writing that the board of directors review the proposed transfer and aut 1orize or
not authorize such proposed transfer. Any transfer attempted to be made in violation of the stock transfer
restrictions will be nuil and void. In the event of an attempted or purported transfer involving a sale or dispusition of
capital stock in violation of stock transfer restrictions, the transferor shall remain the owner of suc: shares.
Notwithstanding such transfer restrictions, there could be circumstances under which an issuance by AMIC of a
significant number of new shares of Common Stock or other new class of equity security havin ; certain
characteristics (for example, the right to vote or convert into Common Stock) might result in an o ¥nership
change under the Code.

14. Insurance Reserves

The Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss ac justment
expenses, including legal and other fees and a portion of the Company’s general expenses, for repitted and
unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting period. These loss reserves are based on actuarial
assumptions and are maintained at levels that are in accordance with GAAP. Many factors could afizct these
reserves, including economic and social conditions, inflation, healthcare costs, changes in doctrines of legal
liability and damage awards in litigation. Therefore, the Company’s reserves are necessarily based on ¢ stimates,
assumptions and analysis of historicat experience. The Company’s results depend upon the variation betwe en actual
claims experience and the assumptions used in determining reserves and pricing products. Reserve assumg tions and
estimates require significant judgment and, therefore, are inherently uncertain. The Company cannot ¢ etermine
with precision the ultimate amounts that will be paid for actual claims or the timing of those paymenrs.

Reserves are based on approved actuarial methods, but necessarily include assumptions about :xpenses,
mortality, morbidity, lapse rates and future yield on related investments.
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All of the Company’s short-duration contracts are generated from our accident and health business, and are
accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims, including losses
incurred for which claims have not been reported. Short-duration contract loss estimates rely on actuarial

observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events.

Balance at a beginning of period . . . ........ ... ... ... . ...
Less: reinsurance recoverables . . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ...

Net balance at beginning of period. .. .. ....................

Amount incurred:
Ly (T O
Prior years. . .. ... ...

Amount paid, related to:
CUITENE YEAT. . . oo vt ettt e e e aa e
Prioryears. . ... e

Net balance at endof period .. .......... ... ... .. ...... ...
Plus: reinsurance recoverables . . . ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ...

Balance atend of period . . ... ... ... .. . L L

The preceding schedule reflects (i) the due and unpaid, (ii) claims in the course of settlement, (iii) estimated
incurred but not reported reserves and (iv) the present value of amounts not yet due on claims. The incurred and paid
data above reflects all activity for the year. The amount incurred in 2006, 2005 and 2004 for prior years of
$1,969,000, $305,000 and $1,730,000, respectively, is primarily a result of re-estimation of unpaid losses on
medical stop-loss reserves. This increase (decrease) is generally the result of on-going analysis of recent loss

development trends.

15. Reinsurance

Independence American reinsures a portion of its provider excess loss business in order to limit the assumption
of disproportionate risks. Amounts not retained are ceded to other companies on an automatic basis. Independence
American is contingently liable with respect to reinsurance in the unlikely event that the assuming reinsurers are
unable to meet their obligations. The ceding of reinsurance does not discharge the primary liability of the original
insurer to the insured. At December 31, 2006, Independence American ceded to three highty rated reinsurers.
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Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands}
$20,882  $22,240 $18.,635
(4,069) (4,344} (4,262)
16,813 17,896 14,373
45,830 44417 37,443
1,969 305 1,730
47,799 44,722 39,173
29,355 29,829 21,521
17,192 15,976 14,129
46,547 45,805 35,650
18,065 16,813 17,896
4,439 4,069 4,344
$22,504 $20,882 $22,240
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The effect of reinsurance on insurance benefits and premiums earned is as follows (in thousands):

Assumed % of
from Ceded to Amc unt
Gross Other Other Net Assu ned
Amount  Companies  Companies Amount _tollet
Insurance Benefits:
Year ended December 31, 2006......... $2,988 $46,328 $1,517 $47,799 97%
Year ended December 31, 2005......... 1,503 44,148 929 44,722 9%
Year ended December 31, 2004. .. ... ... 1,682 38,602 1,111 39,173 9%
Premiums Earned:
Year ended December 31, 2006......... $2,295 $66,554 $1,072 367,777 93%
Year ended December 31, 2005......... 1,727 65,384 993 66,118 N%
Year ended December 31,2004, ..... ... 2,506 59,365 1,668 60,203 93%

16. Dividend Restrictions on Insurance Subsidiary

Dividends from Independence American to its parent, a subsidiary of AMIC, are subject to he prior
notification to the Delaware Insurance Commissioner. If such dividends, together with the fair market value of
other dividends or distributions made within the preceding twelve months, exceed the greater of (i) 10% « f surplus
as regards policyholders as of the preceding December 31 or (ii) net income, not including realized capital _jains, for
the twelve-month period ending the 31st day of December next preceding, such dividends may be paid s> long as
they have not been disapproved by the Delaware Insurance Commissioner within 30 days of its receipt >f notice
thereof. Independence American did not pay any dividends in 2006, 2005, and 2004.
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17. Segment Information

Segment information is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
Independence American. .. ....... ... ... ..t $ 70,380 % 68293  $62,301
MGU Subsidiaries . ... ... ... 10,780 14,434 17,745
COTPOTALE | . . i e i e e 259 158 110
Net realized investment gain . ... ....................... 66 245 222

$ Bl,485 $ 83,130 380,378

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax:

Independence American. . ..............c.iiriniinann., $ 2500 $ 2886 %4329
MGU Subsidiaries . . .. ....... . ... 1,441 3,955 6,771
Corporate .. ..ot (1,539 {1447y  (2,089)
Net realized investment gain .. ............... ... ... ... 66 245 222

$ 2468 § 5639 § 9,233

Identifiable Assets at Year End:

Independence American. . ...............coo0iinia .. $ 69435 $ 64,125
MGU Subsidiaries . .. ... .. e 59,211 58,652
COTPOralE . . e e 6,114 6,955

$134,760  $129,732

18. Other Comprehensive Iitcome

The components of total comprehensive income, net of tax, include net income and certain amounts reported
directly in equity, such as the after-tax unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available-for-sale. The
components of other comprehensive income for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

Net of tax
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period. .. ......... $(348) $(782) $(246)
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses included in net

IMCOIMIE . . .ttt e e e e e 221 3 27
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities . . ... ................... $(127)  $(779)  $(219)
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The quarterly resuits of operations are summarized below (in thousands, except per share data):

Total revenues. . ............
Netincome................
Net income per common share-basic

Net income per common share-diluted

Total revenues. .. ...........
Netincome................
Net income per common share-basic

Net income per common share-diluted

Year Ended December 31, 2006

March 31, June 30, September 30, Decembe ﬁ
2006 2006 2006 2006

(Unaudited)

$19.403  $19.771 $20,247 $22.004
$ 393 $ 354 $ 97 $_ 60
$ 05 $ 04 $ .01 $ 47
$§ 05 $ 04 $ .01 $ 7

Year Ended December 31, 2005

March 31, June 30, September 30, Decembe - 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005

(Unaudited)

$20,062  $21,068 $21,179 &_,_8;
$ 1,194 3 1,22] $ 1,073 $:19£
$ 14 35 4 § .13 &izg
5 14 % .14 $ .13 S;;g
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants en Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

AMIC’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer supervised and participated in AMIC’s eval-
vation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Disclosure
controls and procedures are controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
AMIC’s periodic reports fited or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securittes and Exchange Commis-
sion’s rules and forms. Based upon that evaluation, AMIC’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that AMIC’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

There has been no change in AMIC’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2006
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o materially affect, AMIC’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm can be found in Item 8 of this form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item concerning the Company’s directors and executive officers is incor-
porated by reference from the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the annual meeting of stockholders
to be held in June 2007, which definitive proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, under the headings, “Nominees,” “Board Committees and Meetings,” “Executive Officers,” and
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

The Company’s written Code of Business Ethics and Corporate Code of Conduct collectively apply to all of
the Company’s directors and employees, including the Company’s executive officers, including, without limitation,
the Company’s principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or
persons performing similar functions. The Code of Business Ethics is available on the Company’s website at
www.americanindependencecorp.com/amic/ethics.htm. Changes to, or waivers of, the Code of Business Ethics
will be disclosed on the same website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this lem is incorporated by reference to the sections of the Company’s definitive
proxy statement relating to the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in June 2007, which definitive proxy
statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, under the headings, “Executive Compen-
sation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” “Compensation Committee Report,” and
“Compensation of Non- Employee Directors.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the sections of the Company’s definitive
proxy statement relating to the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in June 2007, which definitive proxy
statement will be filled with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the headings, *“Security Ownership of
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Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensat on
Plans.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the sections of the Company’s defini-ive
proxy staternent relating to the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in June 2007, which definitive prxy
statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, under the headings, “Nominees” and
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the sections of the Company’s defin tive
proxy statement relating to the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in June 2007 which definitive p oxy
statement will be filled with the Securities and Exchange Commission, under the heading “Principal Accour ting
Fees and Services.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements and Exhibits

_Page
*¥(1) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule 1 — Summary of investments — other than investments in related parties . .............. 75
Schedule I — Condensed financial information of Parent Company . .............. ... ... ..... 76-78
Schedule 11l — Supplementary insurance information . . ... ...... ... .. .. ... . .. . . ... 79
Schedule 1V — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. . .. ... ... ... ittt i 80
* All other schedules have been omitted as they are not applicable or not required, or the information

is included in the Consoclidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto
(2) Exhibits. See Index to Exhibits included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ., ... ........... 81
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the registiant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duty authorized on March 17, 2007.

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

Signature

/s/  Roy T.K. Thung President, and Chief Executive Officer
(Roy T.K. Thung)
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(Teresa A. Herbert) {Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed belo'v by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities on March 15, 2007.

Signature

/s Edward A. Bennett Director
{Edward A. Bennett)

fs/ Edward Netter Director
{Edward Netter)

/s/  Ronald I. Simon Director
(Ronald I. Simon)

/s/ Roy T. K. Thung Director
(Roy T. K. Thung)

/s Myron M. Picoult Director
{Myron M. Picoult)

fs/  Martin E. Winter Director
{Martin E. Winter)
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SCHEDULE 1

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUESIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS — OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

Amount
Shown on
Amortized Fair Balance
Type of Investment Cosl Value Sheet
(In thousands)
FIXED MATURITIES:
BONDS:
Corporate SECUFILIES . . . . . ..ttt it i e e $22,241 $21,556 $21,556
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO) and asset backed securities (ABS) . . 9,048 8,875 8,875
States, municipalities and political subdivisions . . ... ...... .. ... ... ...... 1.178 1,174 1,174
US. GOVEernment . . . ...t e e e e 8,211 7983 7983
Government sponsored enterprise (GSE) . . ... . ... ... .. .. ... . ... . ..., 3,046 2982 2982
Agency mortgage backed pass through securities (MBS) .. ................ 133 130 130
TOTAL FIXED MATURITIES. . .. .. ... .. .. ... .. .. ... . ... .. ..... 43 857 42700 42700
NON-REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCKS. . ....................... 2,215 2,181 2,181
Shom-term INVESHMENES . . . . . .ttt ettt e e et e 4,649 4,649 4,649
Securities purchased under agreements toresell ......... ... .............. 6,676 6,676 6,676
Investment in Majestic . . ... .. ... ... e 1,009 1,009 1,009
TOTAL INVESTMENTS . ... ... . e $58,406 $57,215 $57.215
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SCHED JLE 11

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

BALANCE SHEETS
{(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
As of December 31,
2006 __ 2005
(In thousam 5)

ASSETS:
Cashandcash equivalents. . ........ ..o i $ 99 5 2913
ShOr-term IMVESLMEIIS | - -« o oot ettt e e e em et te s m e et e e e e enn 4,297 1,979
Securities purchased under agreements toresell . .. ... .. ... .. o oL 1,180 —
Investmenis in continuing consolidated subsidiaries . ... ......... ... ... .. ... 65,266 63,589
Otherreceivables ... ... . i i i i e e e s 1 77
O RET ASSEIS « . . ottt e e e e e 529 569
Deferred taX a858E . . . v vt it e e e e e e ey 12,973 _ 13,752
TOTAL ASSETS . ... .. e e e e i e $ 84345 § 82,879
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and other liabilities . ............ ... ... ... oo A 706 $ 601
Net liabilities associated with discontinued operations .. ................... 355 808
TOTAL LIABIITIES . . . .. . ... e i ce s 1,261 _ 1,409

STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Preferred stock (nonedssued) . . .. ... ... . L. i e — —_—
Common stock, 9,180,695 and 9,180,695 shares issued and 8,457,890 and

8,451,223 shares outstanding, respectively ......... ... ... .. .. 92 92
Paid-in capital . . ... ..o e e 479,399 479,192
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Unrealized 10ss on iNVESIMENS, MEL . . .. .0 vttt et i i ian e iie s ianan e {1,191) (1,064)
Treasury stock, at cost, 722,805 and 729,472 shares, respectively . ............ (8,650) (8,730)
Accumulated deficit .. ... ... i e e (386,566y _(388.020)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ... ... ... e 83,084 81,470
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY .. ............... $ 84345 § 82.879

The financial information of American [ndependence Corp. (Parent Company Only) should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE 11 — (Continued)

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
REVENUES:
Net Investment InCOmE. . . . ...yttt it et e e aee e $ 250 % 121§ 90
Net realized investment gains . . ... .. .. ... ... ... . . oL 384 248 249
O her INCOME . . ... e i it e e e e — — 15
634 369 354
EXPENSES:
General and administrative expenses and other ... ................... 1,796 1,670 2,197
Restructuring (inCOme) eXpense .. ...t iit et nnneerannnee., — (67) —
1,796 1,603 2,197
Loss before income tax exXpense. ... ..ot i i e e (1,162) (1,234) (1,843)
Income tax expense (benefit) . .. ... ... ... ... L. (387) (2,493 {632)
Income (loss) before equity in net income of subsidiaries . ............... (775) 1,259 (1,211)
Equity in net income of subsidiaries. . .......... ... .. .. o e, 2,283 4,260 6,875
Income from continuing operations ... .............ueiiineinnanr.as 1,508 5,519 5,664
Discontinued Operations:
Income (loss) of discontinued operations. .., . ..., ..., ... ........ (54) (59) 240
NELINCOME &« v ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e $1,454 $5460 $5904

The financial information of American Independence Corp. (Parent Company Only) should be read in

conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Nl IO . v e s e e e e e et i ettt sttt e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operating
activities:

Deferred tax eXpense . .. .. oottt it e
Equity in net income of subsidiaries. .. .......... ... .. ool
Net realized investment (ains). .. .. ..ot o i
Provisions for restructuring. . . . ... oot e
{Gain) loss from discontinued operations . ............ ... ... ... ..
Non-cash compensation eXpense. . ... ... vv v e nncreenianrneanan
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Net sales of trading securities. . . .. ... . ... i
Change in deferred tax asset. . .. .. ... i
Change in other assets and liabilities ................ ... ... .. ...

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities of continuing operations . .

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities of discontinued

OPEFALIONS .+ . .o vttt it e

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities. .. ................

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Increase (decrease) in investments in and advances to consolidated
SUDSIIATIES © o vttt e it e e e e

Net (purchases) sates of short-term investments. .. ........... ... ...,
Net (purchases) sales of securities under resale and and repurchase
AEIEEMENIS. . . . ..o e

Net cash provided by (used by) investing activities .................

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Exercise of common Stock options . .. ..., . .o i

Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities . . ... ............

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. ... ... ... ........... ..

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period .. ................... ..

Cash and cash equivalents,end of period . . .. ... .. ... ... ... . oL

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:

ICOIME TAKES « . v o vt o et e e ettt e e e et e e e

SCHEDULE H — (Cor tinued)

Year Ended Decembs r 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

$1,454 $5460 §$59504
869 (203) 3,065
(2,283 (4.260) (6,875)
(384) (248) (249)
— (67) —
54 59 (240)
235 227 456
392 248 249
91 {90) (533)
201 343 (1,043)
447 1,469 734
(307) (187) (192)
140 1,282 542
479 (1,376) 92
(2,305) 1.475 (320}
(1,180) _ —_
(3,006) 99 (228)
52 95 198
52 95 198
(2,814) 1,476 512
2,913 1,437 925
$ 99 $2913 $1437
$ 149 % 335 § 544

The financial information of American Independence Corp. (Parent Company Only) should be rcad in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE III

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

Net Selling,
Investment Insurance General
Income Benefits And
Insurance Premiums Gains/ And Administrative Premiums
Reserves Earned (Losses) Claims Expenses Written
(In thousands)

FISCAL Year Ended December 31, 2006:
Independence American. , . ............ $22.504 $67,777  $2,745 $47.799 $20,082 $67,777
MGUs. ... ... ... — — 305 — 8,387 —
Corporate ... ..........coiiviiuinn.. — — 217 — 1,798 —
Total. . ..., ... ... ... .. ... ... .. $22,504 $67,777 $3,267 $47,799 $30,267 $67.777
FISCAL Year Ended December 31, 2005:
Independence American. ... ........... $20,882 $66,118 $2,505 $44,722  $20,685 $66,118
MGUs. ... e — — 195 —_— 8,835 —
Corporate . ............. ... ... ..... — — (199) — 1,672 —
Total. ... ... ... ... ... . ... ..... $20,882 $66,118 $2,501  $44,722 $31,192 $66,118
FISCAL Year Ended December 31, 2004:
Independence American, .. ............ $22,240 $60,203 $2,575 $39,173 $18,800 $60,203
MGUs. ... ... — — 61 — 8,630 —
Corporate . ..................coo.... -— — (345) — 2,198 —
Total. ........... .. ... ... ... . ... $22,240 $60,203 $2,291 $39,173 $29.628 $60,203
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AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
SCHEDULE IV — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at  Charged to  Charged to
Beginning Costs and Other Bal ince at
of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions  End . f Period
(In thousands)
Valuation Allowance on Deferred Tax
Asset:
Year ended December 31,2006.......... $87,060 $ 44 $ — 5§ — $£7,104
Year ended December 31,2005.......... $88.867 $272 $ — $2,079(e)  $£7,000
Year ended December 31,2004 . ......... $89,664 $(275) § — $ 522(c)  $£8,867
Net Liabilities Associated with
Discontinued Operations:
Year ended December 31,2006 .. ........ $ 808 $ 83(d) — $ 336(a) $ 555
Year ended December 31,2005 .. ........ $ 936 $ 90(d) 5 — $ 218(a) $ 808
Year ended December 31,2004 .. ........ $ 1,368 5 — $(240%b) § 192(a) $ 936
Restructuring Reserve:
Year ended December 31, 2006 . ... ...... 5 — $ — $ — $ — 5§ —
Year ended December 31,2005 .......... $ 300 $ — 5 — $ 300@ $ —
Year ended December 31,2004 . ......... $ 866 $ — F — $ S66(a) $ 300
(a) Amounts written off and payments applied, net of receipts.
(b) Payments applied were less than original reserve estimate.
(¢) Reduction due to acquisition of Majestic, effective July 2004.

(@
(e)

Expected payments were more than original reserve estimate.

Reduction is based on management’s periodic evaluation of the valuation allowance.
g
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Exhibit No.
2.1

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

43

10.1

10.2

10.3
10.4
10.5
21.1

231
31.1

312
32.1
322

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Ttem 15(A) (3)

Description of Document

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant, SSH Corporation and
Independence Holding Company. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated July 31, 2002

Second Amended and restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 of the registrant’s Annual Report on form 10K for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002.

Amended By-Laws of the Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the registrant’s
Annual Report on form 10K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant and Madison Investors
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 31, 2002.

Stock Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant, Independence Holding Company and
Madison Investors Corporation. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated July 31, 2002.

Rights Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant and Mellon Investor Services LLC
which includes the form of Certificate of Designations of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock of Registrant as Exhibit A, the form of Right Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rights
to Purchase Preferred Shares as Exhibit C. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 31, 2002,

Services Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2002, by and between American Independence Corp.
and Independence Holding Company. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November i4, 2002.

Agency Agreement, dated February 22, 2006, between the Registrant and First Integrated Health, Inc.
Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2005.

Registrant’s 1998 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 of the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated May 10, 1999,

Registrant’s 1999 Supplemental Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 of the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 5-8 dated June 8, 1999,

Binding Letter Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2006, by and among Independence American
Insurance Company, Insurers Administrative Corporation and Mr. Peter W. Nauert d.b.a. Independent
Producers Agency, Inc.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Transfer Agent

* Please direct communications regarding individual stock records and address changes to: Registrar and
Transfer Company, 10 Commerce Drive, Cranford, NJ 07016 (website: www.rtco.com). You can call our
transfer agent at (800) 368-5948.

Investor Relations

» Securities analysts and investors should contact Investor Relations by writing to the Company’s h :adquar-
ters or by calling {212) 355-4141 x 3047.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
» KPMG LLF, 345 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10154,

Corporate Headguarters
* Qur corporate headquarters are located at 485 Madison Ave., 14th Floor, New York, New York 10022.

Corporate Governance

* The Company maintains a website at www.americanindependencecorp.com. Visitors to the (lompany
website can view and print copies of the Company’s SEC filings, including Forms 10-K, 10-Q ani 8-K, as
soon as reasonably practicable after those filings are made with the SEC. Copies of the Company” Code of
Business Ethics and Corporate Code of Conduct are available through the Company website. Alte natively,
shareholders may obtain, without charge, copies of all of these documents, as well as additional :opies of
this report, by writing to Investor Relations at the Company’s headquarters. Please note that the inf srmation
contained on Company’s website is not incorporated by reference in, or considered to be a part of, this
document.
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LEADERSHIP INFORMATION

DIRECTORS:

Mr. Edward A. Bennett
President
Bennett Media Collaborative

Mr. Edward Netter
Chairman
Independence Holding Company

Mr. Myron M. Picoult
Independent Insurance Consultant

Mr. Ronald 1. Simon
Independent Financial Consultant

Mr. Roy T.K. Thung

Chief Executive Officer

and President

Independence Holding Company

Mr. Martin E. Winter
Managing Director
Alvarez & Marsal LLC
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS:

Mr. Roy T.K. Thung
Chief Executive Officer
and President

Ms. Teresa A. Herbert
Chief Financial Officer
and Senior Vice President

Mr. David T. Kettig
Co-Chief Operating Officer
and Senior Vice President

Mr. Jeftrey C. Smedsrud

Chief Strategic Development Officer

and Senior Vice President

Mr. Scott M. Wood
Co- Chief Operating Officer
and Senior Vice President

Mr. Henry B. Spencer
Vice President — [nvestments

Mr. Adam C. Vandervoort
Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary
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